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Key Figures

USD ’000

2003

2002

Change

Total Assets

72,060

31,337

130%

Gross Loan Portfolio

58,870

25,656

129%

55,650

25,384

119%

Micro Loans (< USD 10,000)

19,821

10,032

98%

Small Loans (> USD 10,000; < USD 50,000)

23,536

9,227

155%

Medium Loans (> USD 50,000)

12,293

6,125

101%

1,945

861

126%

Net Loan Portfolio

56,925

24,795

130%

Customer Funds

11,558

3,931

194%

Borrowing from Financial Institutions

43,034

17,704

143%

Shareholders’ Equity

15,125

9,597

58%

Operating Income (net of revaluation)

5,621

2,937

91%

Operating Expenses (net of revaluation)

5,307

2,392

122%

Operating Profit Before Tax

314

545

-42%

Net Revaluation Gains

399

1,002

-60%

Profit After Revaluation Gains, Before Tax*

701

1,539

-54%

Net Profit (After Tax)

403

993

-59%

78%

67%

16%

4%

14%

-70%

Capital Ratio

24%

33%

-28%

Fixed Assets to Equity

32%

28%

12%

Number of Loans Outstanding

12,580

6,044

108%

Number of Deposit Accounts

13,266

2,387

456%

445

290

54%

23

17

35%

Balance Sheet Data

Business Loan Portfolio

Loan Loss Provisions

Income Statement

Key Ratios
Cost/Income Ratio
ROE

Operational Statistics

Number of Staff
Number of Branches and Outlets

* Includes net other income and other expenses that are not part of operating income and operating expenses.
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Mission Statement

ProCredit Bank Ukraine

MISSION STATEMENT

ProCredit Bank Ukraine is a development-oriented full-service bank. We offer
excellent customer service and a wide range
of banking products. In our credit operations,
we focus on lending to micro, small and
medium-sized

enterprises,

as

we

are

convinced that these businesses create the
largest number of jobs and make a vital
contribution to the economies in which they
operate. Our bank explicitly avoids all speculative lines of business and issues large loans
only in exceptional cases, thus minimising the
risk associated with such activities.

Our shareholders – most of whom are
major, well-established international institutions – expect a sustainable return on investment, but are not primarily interested in
short-term profit maximisation. We invest
extensively in the training of our staff in order
to create an enjoyable and efficient working
atmosphere,

and

to

ensure

that

our

customers receive the friendliest and most
competent service possible.
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Letter from the Board of Directors

LETTER FROM THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

When ProCredit Bank Ukraine was estab-

tion to the development of the country’s market

lished three years ago under the name

economy, which is still young. In 2003 alone, the

“Microfinance Bank”, the primary objective of

bank issued 16,000 business loans, and at the

the bank’s founding shareholders – the German-

end of the year more than 12,500 loans of this

Ukrainian Fund, the EBRD, the IFC, the Western

type with a total volume of almost USD 60 mil-

NIS Enterprise Fund, the DOEN Foundation and

lion were outstanding to our customers. In most

IMI AG – was to provide micro, small and

cases, the initial loans which our clients

medium-sized enterprises in Ukraine with a

obtained from ProCredit Bank were the first

reliable and easily accessible source of financ-

bank loans they had received since starting

ing. By defining the new institution’s primary

their businesses. Nonetheless, the overwhelm-

mission in this way, the shareholders sought to

ing majority of our borrowers have met all of

respond to the severe shortage of credit avail-

their repayment obligations on time, demon-

able to the local SME sector. Today, most of the

strating not only the suitability of our credit

institutions that make up the Ukrainian financial

technology but also the overall soundness and

sector still lack both the capacity and the

creditworthiness of the enterprises we serve.

willingness to provide the local business com-

Thus, in a very real sense the excellent quality of

munity, especially very small businesses, with

ProCredit Bank’s port-folio is a reflection of the

adequate financial services.

quality of the businesses in Ukraine that make
up our clientele.

From its inception, the bank has received
support in the form of technical assistance pro-

ProCredit Bank continuously strives to

vided by the governments of the United States,

broaden the range of financial products it offers

Germany and Canada and by the European

and also to enhance their quality. To this end, in

Union. And we would like to take this opportu-

2003 the bank introduced a number of new

nity to express our sincere appreciation for this

products for its depositors and several new

support, which facilitated both the establish-

types of loans. The new products launched

ment of ProCredit Bank and its rapid regional

during the past year included a special savings

expansion.

product aimed at children (and their parents
and grandparents), the so-called “children’s

Tremendous progress has been made in

savings account”, and the “Express Loan”, a

turning the shareholders’ vision of an institution

business loan product with no collateral

that could close the financing gap for small

requirements and a processing time of no more

businesses in Ukraine into a reality. Thanks to

than 24 hours.

its innovative approach to credit analysis,
ProCredit Bank has been able to grant 25,000

In line with our strategy of seeking to

loans to very small, small and medium-sized

provide services nationwide, we increased the

businesses in all parts of Ukraine since it was

number of branches and representative offices

established, thus making a significant contribu-

by six during 2003 to a total of 23. In 2004 we

6
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plan to convert all 10 of our representative
offices into full-service branches. We also plan
to open six additional branches in cities where
we already operate and to launch operations in
two new regions by opening full-service
branches in Zaporizhzhya and Mykolayiv. If we
are to realise our ambitious expansion plans, it
will be crucial to develop the necessary human
resources, and, consequently, providing the
requisite training to both new and existing staff
will be one of the top priorities for 2004. In our
training activities, as in all other personnelrelated matters, we are guided by the recognition that our highly qualified and loyal staff is
ProCredit Bank’s most important asset.
In the initial years of its operations, the
bank could rely on its shareholders to provide
the necessary funding for the growth of its business. In the coming years we will strive to
develop ProCredit Bank into a full-service bank,
and special attention will be given to mobilising
deposits as a source of onlending funds.
Capturing a sizeable share of the local deposit
market will provide us with the necessary finan-

Members of the Board as
at December 31, 2003:

cial resources to fuel further growth. And thus it
will help to fulfil our ambitious goal of developing ProCredit Bank into a genuine “people’s
bank” with nationwide coverage – a provider of
excellent financial services to the general public

Dr. Elizabeth Wallace
Dr. C.-P. Zeitinger
Dirk Haböck
Alexander Munteanu
Ilona Dorothea Lulof

throughout Ukraine – and a reliable banking
partner for businesses in all of the country’s
Members of the
Audit Committee as at
December 31, 2003:

regions.

Dr. Elizabeth Wallace
Chairperson of the Board

Christoph Freytag
Rüdiger Rurainsky
Tatiana Lavinskaya

Letter from the Management

LETTER FROM THE MANAGEMENT

Since its foundation in January 2001,

New structures and improved customer

ProCredit Bank Ukraine has considerably

service led to a significant increase in the num-

expanded its scope of operations. From an insti-

ber of clients. ProCredit Bank now manages

tution focusing on the extension of loans to very

more than 17,000 customer accounts. In terms

small businesses, it is evolving into a full-

of lending, we currently have almost 10,000 bor-

service bank offering a broad range of financial

rowers. The total outstanding loan volume

services aimed at micro, small and medium-

stood at almost USD 60 million at the end of

sized businesses and private households. The

2003, representing an increase of 129% over the

products available today include not only a

previous year. At only USD 12 million, the

variety of credit products with flexible collateral

deposit volume as of December 31, 2003 was

requirements, but also deposit facilities. Our

much smaller than the outstanding loan volume

change of name in October 2003, from

at the end of the year. In the final quarter of

“Microfinance Bank” to “ProCredit Bank”, is a

2003, we therefore introduced new savings

reflection of this strategy, and at the same time

products, intensified our staff training with

emphasises the fact that we belong to a strong

respect to deposit services, enlarged our branch

network of ten “ProCredit Banks” in the region.

network, locating branches in modern, accessible buildings, and strengthened our marketing

The evolution of ProCredit Bank into a

department. We are convinced that these

customer-oriented, full-service bank involved a

measures will bring about a sustained growth in

number of measures aimed at strengthening

the results of the deposit business in 2004.

structures at both head office and branch level.
One of the most significant changes from our

The necessary investments in our human

customers’ point of view was the creation of a

resources, in our branch network, in product

business client development department, which

development and in marketing led to an

enables us to work more intensively with our

increase in operating expenses, which in turn

business customers. Another key improvement

limited our profit for 2003 to USD 0.4 million.

was the expansion of our retail department,

While the profit for 2002 was higher, it is impor-

which allowed us to significantly enhance our

tant to remember that this was due to the

customer service and to offer new, innovative

extraordinary income earned in 2002 from the

deposit facilities. In addition, we invested exten-

revaluation of euro-denominated loans. The

sively in the strengthening of back-office

profit for 2003 was in line with our expectations

structures. By increasing the level of funds and

and can be regarded as satisfactory for a young

human resources committed to our Finance

target group-oriented institution like ProCredit

Department

and

Bank. Although major investments in personnel,

Administration, we have laid the groundwork

infrastructure and marketing are again envis-

for realising our ambitious expansion plans

aged for 2004, we feel certain that the planned

for 2004.

expansion of both our lending operations and

and

to

HR,

Marketing

our deposit business will enable us to report a
significant increase in profits during the current
financial year.
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We, the management of ProCredit Bank,
would like to thank our employees for their
dedication,

enthusiasm

and

hard

work.

Everyone in the bank plays a role in creating our
corporate culture, and each member of staff has
helped to make ProCredit Bank the successful

Volker Renner
General Manager

institution it is today. We would also like to
express our appreciation to our clients and partners for the confidence they have shown in
ProCredit Bank. It is their trust, combined with

Dr. Anja Lepp
First Deputy General Manager

our strengthened internal structures and our
highly motivated staff, that will enable us to
continue growing in the challenging market in
which we operate, while maintaining our vision
and our flexibility.

Olena Malynska
Chief Financial Officer
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ProCredit – An International Network

PROCREDIT – AN INTERNATIONAL NETWORK

gap in the market. Over the years, we have developed a profound understanding of both the problems faced by these small businesses and the
opportunities available to them, and we have
tailored our credit technology to reflect the realities of their operating environment.
As the figures demonstrate, our approach
ProCredit Bank Ukraine is part of a large

has been a resounding success: As of December

network of financial institutions which currently

31, 2003 the network had grown to over 200

has 18 members worldwide. In this introduction to

branches and 4,600 employees, and the combined

our annual report, we would like to briefly acquaint

total assets of the network institutions exceeded

you with this network.

EUR 1.0 billion. The loan portfolio amounted to
some EUR 600 million and was distributed among

Small

and

medium-sized

enterprises

roughly 300,000 customers, which translates into

(SMEs) are seen by many economists and develop-

an average loan size of around EUR 2,000. And

ment experts as the main engine of growth and job

only 1% of the overall credit volume outstanding at

creation. Moreover, in political terms, the middle

the end of 2003 was more than 30 days overdue.

class which emerges when SMEs grow and develop

This proves that it is precisely the small borrowers

usually plays a stabilising role in society. One

we serve who are the most reliable customers.

important factor for the development of SMEs is
their access to financial services. Most commercial

In their initial phase of operations, the

banks, however, are reluctant to extend credit to

ProCredit institutions focus on lending. Over time,

this client group, citing various reasons, some

as they extend their range of products to include

more justified than others: the inability of SMEs to

deposit-taking

provide sufficient collateral, a lack of formal

demanded by their customers, the institutions

accounts and transparency, excessive costs for the

gradually develop into full-service banks – with-

administration and monitoring of such loans,

out, however, losing their special character and

insufficient demand for other banking services

their focus on the SME client group. Based on our

among these clients, excessive credit risk, etc.

initial success and the phasing of operational

Consequently, most banks focus only on the upper

focus at country level, our planning envisages

end of this market segment, and, if they offer small

significant network expansion. By the end of 2008,

loans at all, then usually in the form of consumer

we expect the network to have a presence in 25

lending, which is less demanding in terms of credit

countries, with 450 branches, 10,000 employees

technology and risk management.

and a loan portfolio of EUR 2.5 billion. Growth on

and

other

banking

services

such a scale can only be financed if, in addition to
In response, the initiators of the ProCredit

maintaining

successful

lending

operations,

network have established 18 target group-oriented

we also succeed in deepening the trust of our

financial institutions over the last five years, in

depositors. As of the end of 2003 the network

Eastern Europe, Latin America and Africa. These

reported a total deposit volume of around EUR 550

institutions focus on providing business loans to

million, and we are confident of being able to raise

enterprises ranging from the very small to the

this figure to around EUR 2.0 billion within the next

medium-sized, thereby helping to close a major

five years.
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profit-

The network members’ activities are

oriented, but at the same time the major share-

guided and supervised by IMI and by IPC, the

holders retain their commitment to developmental

management consulting firm which provides man-

goals. They do not see profit maximisation as the

agement services to the banks. Both IMI and IPC

sole objective of the banks’ activities. In 2003, the

are located in Frankfurt am Main, Germany. This

ROE for all of the institutions in the network in hard

centralised management and supervision makes it

currency, after deduction of profit taxes, was 10%.

possible to achieve synergies which have a

The

network

institutions

are

11

positive impact in many areas – for example, in
The major shareholders in the individual

regard to training, corporate culture and identity

network institutions are Internationale Micro

(including

Investitionen (IMI), KfW/DEG, the IFC, the EBRD,

“ProCredit Bank” logo and corporate brand), risk

establishment

of

the

common

FMO and the DOEN Foundation. IMI, which is

management, auditing, business policies, funding

owned to a large extent by the same institutions

for lending activities, as well as ethical and other

that hold shares in the individual network institu-

professional standards.

tions, can be considered the strategic investor of
this group. Through share swaps and sales, IMI’s
direct stakes in the individual institutions are
increasing every year.

The international network
of ProCredit institutions;
see also www.imi-ag.com

Partner Banks in the Region

PARTNER BANKS IN THE REGION

ProCredit Bank Ukraine benefits from

and support banks that are successfully carrying

steadily increasing cooperation with a number

out the same mission in neighbouring countries.

of partner banks in the region that share our
philosophy and mostly have a shareholder

As a member of a regional network

structure similar to that of ProCredit Bank

uniting banks with common experiences and

Ukraine.

objectives, ProCredit Bank Ukraine is in a
unique position to satisfy the needs of

The shareholders of ProCredit Bank
Ukraine, who have already proven their commitment to Ukraine, also share a regional vision

Ukrainian customers for competent and reliable
services throughout the region.
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Name

Highlights

Contact

ProCredit Bank
Albania

Founded in March 1999
13 branches
9,003 borrowers / EUR 47 million in loans
36,261 depositors / EUR 80 million
271 employees

Rruga Sami Frasheri, Tirana
Tel./Fax +355-4-271 272 / -276
info@procreditbank.com.al
www.procreditbank.com.al

ProCredit Bank
Bosnia and Herzegovina

Founded in October 1997
11 branches
10,761 borrowers / EUR 44 million in loans
17,958 depositors / EUR 11 million
226 employees

Sime Milutinovica Sarajlije 4,
71000 Sarajevo
Tel./Fax +387-33-250 950 / 441 428
info@procreditbank.ba
www.procreditbank.ba

ProCredit Bank
Bulgaria

Founded in June 2001
30 branches
16,492 borrowers / EUR 78 million in loans
34,616 depositors / EUR 38 million
468 employees

131, Hristo Botev Blvd., 1233 Sofia
Tel./Fax +359-2-92171-05 / -09
contact@procreditbank.bg
www.procreditbank.bg

ProCredit Bank
Georgia

Founded in May 1999
18 branches
10,632 borrowers / EUR 38 million in loans
27,038 depositors / EUR 14.0 million
440 employees

Tamar Mephe Ave. 18, 0112 Tbilisi
Tel./Fax +995-32-202 222 / 250 580
info@procreditbank.ge
www.procreditbank.ge

ProCredit Bank
Kosovo

Founded in January 2000
11 branches
15,950 borrowers / EUR 65 million in loans
145,375 depositors / EUR 255 million
287 employees

Rr. Skenderbeu, 38000 Prishtina
Tel./Fax +381-38-240 248 / 248 778
info@procreditbank-kos.com
www.procreditbank-kos.com

ProCredit Bank
Macedonia

Founded in June 2003
4 branches
1,480 borrowers / EUR 7 million in loans
2,704 depositors / EUR 2 million
82 employees

Marks i Engels 3, 1000 Skopje
Tel./Fax +389-2-3219 -900 / -901
info@procreditbank.com.mk
www.procreditbank.com.mk

Micro Enterprise Credit (MEC)
Moldova

Founded in December 1999
10 branches
2,810 borrowers / EUR 5.3 million in loans
89 employees

Str. Ismail 31, 2001 Chisinau
Tel./Fax +373-22-270 707 / 273 488
office@mec-moldova.com
www.mec-moldova.com

MIRO Bank
Romania

Founded in May 2002
8 branches
5,010 borrowers / EUR 27 million in loans
9,535 depositors / EUR 5 million
163 employees

Str. Fagaras 6,
7000 Bucharest, Sector 1
Tel./Fax +40-21-402 8380 / -8383
headoffice@mirobank.ro
www.mirobank.ro

ProCredit Bank
Serbia

Founded in April 2001
21 branches
11,722 borrowers / EUR 74 million in loans
89,773 depositors / EUR 55 million
536 employees

29 Novembra 68c,
11000 Belgrade
Tel./Fax +381-11-2077-906 / -905
info@procreditbank.co.yu
www.procreditbank.co.yu
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THE BANK AND ITS SHAREHOLDERS

ProCredit Bank Ukraine was established

three years since its founding, ProCredit Bank

in 2001 by international financial institutions

Ukraine has evolved into the market leader in

under the name “Microfinance Bank”. By creat-

providing financing to micro and small enter-

ing the bank, the shareholders aimed to provide

prises in Ukraine, with thousands of private

the micro, small and medium-sized enterprises

businesses as loyal clients. The bank was estab-

in Ukraine with increased access to financing.

lished with an initial share capital of EUR 10

The SME sector faced substantial problems in

million. In order to facilitate ProCredit Bank’s

obtaining financing for investments and their

future growth, the shareholders increased its

day-to-day business activities at that time, and

capital in 2003, from EUR 10 million to USD 15

indeed still faces such problems today. In the

million.

Shareholder

Sector

Headquarters

Share

Paid-in Capital
in USD

EBRD

Banking

UK

20%

3 million

KfW/GUF

Banking

Germany/Ukraine

20%

3 million

IFC

Banking

USA

20%

3 million

IMI

Investment

Germany

20%

3 million

WNISEF

Investment

USA

20%

3 million

100%

15 million

Total

KfW Banking Group (Kreditanstalt

The

German-Ukrainian

Fund

(GUF)

was

für Wiederaufbau), founded in 1948,

founded by KfW, the Ukrainian Ministry of

provides financial packages designed to stimu-

Finance and the National Bank of Ukraine and is

late economic, social and ecological develop-

designed to improve access to financing for

ment in Germany, Europe and the world over.

micro and small enterprises in Ukraine. The GUF

The group focuses on the promotion of SMEs,

was a founding shareholder and holds 12.7% of

the financing of housing construction and

ProCredit Bank’s share capital. A transfer of

modernisation, protection of the environment

shares from the GUF to KfW has been agreed

and the climate, export and project finance and

upon, and as a result of the transfer, KfW’s par-

support for developing countries and transition

ticipation in the bank will increase from the cur-

economies.

rent 7.3% to 20%.
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The International Finance Corpora-

Internationale Micro Investitionen

tion (IFC), a multilateral institution,

AG (IMI), founded in 1998, is a com-

promotes the development of the private sector

mercial development-oriented investment com-

in its developing member countries. A member

pany. It has so far taken equity stakes totalling

of the World Bank Group, but legally and finan-

EUR 40 million in 18 banks and financial institu-

cially independent, IFC provides long-term loans

tions based in developing countries and transi-

and equity finance at market terms and condi-

tion economies. IMI can be seen as the strategic

tions in support of private sector activities,

investor in the ProCredit network, and as its

helps mobilise additional financing from other

administrative headquarters. The company’s

sources and provides advisory services to both

shareholders represent a 50:50 mix of private

government and businesses. Since its founding

and public investors.

in 1956, IFC has invested almost USD 30 billion
of its own funds in more than 2,400 companies
in 136 developing countries.

The Western NIS Enterprise Fund was
created to support the development
of small and medium-sized private enterprises

The European Bank for Reconstruc-

in Ukraine, Moldova and Belarus through the

tion and Development (EBRD) was

infusion of capital. The Fund’s strategy is to

established in 1991. It aims to foster the transi-

provide capital and management tools for the

tion towards open, market-oriented economies

restructuring

and to promote private and entrepreneurial

enterprises. This in turn creates jobs and wealth

initiative in the countries of Central and Eastern

for the people of the region. An additional

Europe and the Commonwealth of Independent

objective is to demonstrate to the global finan-

States (CIS) committed to democracy, pluralism

cial community that profitable activities can be

and market economics. The EBRD seeks to help

undertaken in the region and, as a result, attract

its 27 countries of operations to implement

private investment capital.

structural and sectoral economic reforms,
promoting competition, privatisation and entrepreneurship. In fulfilling its role as a catalyst of
change, the bank encourages cofinancing and
foreign direct investment from the private and
public sectors, helps to mobilise domestic
capital, and provides technical cooperation in
relevant areas.

and

expansion

of

private

15
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Economic Environment

budget posted a surplus of approximately 0.4%
of GDP. Both internal and external debt was

After almost 10 years of economic

reduced in absolute terms, and Ukraine’s

decline following Ukraine’s independence, the

foreign debt now amounts to less than 25% of

country has seen a tremendous turnaround.

GDP. In October, Ukraine returned to the interna-

2003 was the fourth year of continued GDP

tional capital markets with a Eurobond issue of

growth, reaching an estimated 8.5% on a year-

USD 200 million. In light of this development,

to-year basis. Other macroeconomic indicators

major

showed a positive trend as well. As state

increased the country’s rating and confirmed

revenues were stronger than expected and

their positive outlook.

international

rating

agencies

have

expenditures were under control, the state
The annual inflation rate was 8.2%, only
slightly exceeding initial targets, and the
hryvnia remained stable against the US dollar
during the year. The level of the National Bank
of Ukraine’s gross international reserves continued to rise, reaching USD 7 billion by the end of
2003. Nominal interest rates showed a downward trend across all segments, particularly in
the first half of the year. Combined with the
higher inflation rate, there was a significant
decline in real interest rates for hryvnia loans
and deposits during 2003.
Yet further growth is required, as
Ukraine’s per capita GDP still stands at a mere
25% of the figure for major accession countries,
thus strongly limiting the purchasing power of
its population of 48 million. The country
requires further structural changes, such as in
the energy and agricultural sectors and in
respect to the registration of property rights,
and public sector accountability is another
major issue. Finally, the current political situation is leading to a high level of uncertainty,
which has a negative impact on economic forecasts. And although foreign direct investment
reached levels similar to those in 2002, many

16
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foreign investors remain cautious in light of the

tion, the share of firms citing “obtaining exter-

up-coming presidential elections.

nal financing” as a major or significant obstacle
increased from 24% in the year 2000 to 41% in

The financial sector has strongly bene-

2002. This increase partly reflects the fact that

fited from the positive economic development.

the overall business environment has stabilised

Lending boomed in 2003, and the aggregate

considerably in recent years, thus bringing the

loan portfolio of commercial banks has

issue of financing to the fore. In the past, other

increased by almost 70% compared to year-end

problems, such as the diminishing purchasing

2002. The increase in deposits was equally

power of the population, a high level of bureau-

strong. This increase is not only a reflection of

cracy and the problem of corruption, have over-

Ukraine’s strong economic performance, but

shadowed the severe lack of financing for SMEs

also a sign that financial intermediation through

in Ukraine. However, the increase also reflects

banks is finally picking up. The public now has

the fact that as these problems become less

greater confidence in banks, and billions 0f US

pressing, demand for financing is rising, but is

dollars kept “under the mattress” are slowly

not being met by the banking sector. There is a

finding their way into the financial sector. At the

clear danger that the financing gap for these

same time, banks have substantially increased

enterprises, rather than narrowing, may widen

their lending capacity. Yet, there remains con-

still further. Although lending to large and even

siderable scope for further growth, as banking

medium-sized enterprises has gained in impor-

assets still amount to only 25% of GDP, com-

tance in the view of Ukrainian commercial

pared to an average of 66% in the 10 accession

banks, only a handful of banks, mostly partner

countries. Thus, it can be expected that the

banks of international lending programmes, are

strong growth trend in the Ukrainian banking

as yet prepared to engage in lending to small

sector will continue.

enterprises.

Positive trends can also be observed in
the small business sector. With the number of
private entrepreneurs and small enterprises
estimated at nearly two million, the role of the
Ukrainian small business sector is steadily
increasing. Already more than a quarter of
employment is provided by SMEs.
However, despite the growth of the banking system, a major bottleneck for the development of the small business sector remains the
lack of financing. According to a study commissioned by a major international financial institu-
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In respect to small and medium-sized

Lending Business

businesses,

ProCredit

Bank

upgraded

its

In 2003 ProCredit Bank succeeded in

services by introducing more flexible credit

increasing its gross loan portfolio by more than

products. SME clients, especially in the large

100%, to USD 58.9 million. In order to achieve

cities, have developed in terms of their sophisti-

this strong growth, there was a further staff

cation, expecting an individual approach when

increase of 20% in the credit department in

it comes to their financing needs. With greater

2003 (after an increase of more than 100% in

flexibility in terms of disbursement and repayment

schedules,

collateral

requirements and other conditions, ProCredit Bank is now

Loan Portfolio Development

Volume
(in USD million)
70

Number
(in '000)
14

able to meet these needs. At
the same time, a specialised
group of business client advi-

60

12

50

10

40

8

30

6

20

4

10

2

0

0

sors was formed who will manage these clients on an individual basis not only in respect to
credit, but also with regard to
other financial services, such as
payments, account services or
foreign currency transactions.
In the segment below USD

Jan-03

Feb-03 Mar-03 Apr-03 May-03 Jun-03

up to USD 10,000

USD 10,001 - USD 50,000

Jul-03

Aug-03 Sep-03 Oct-03 Nov-03 Dec-03
> USD 50,000

Total Outstanding Number

10,000,

ProCredit

Bank

expanded its client base by
introducing the Express Loan, a
product for loan amounts up to

2002). At the same time, loan officer produc-

USD 3,000 with substantially simplified proce-

tivity, measured as the average number and

dures. Express Loans can be disbursed without

volume of loans per loan officer, almost doubled

collateral being provided by the client. It is

during the year.

important to us that our products reach the
largest possible number of clients and that in

The increase in the loan portfolio was

our operations we achieve a high level of social

achieved across all loan size categories,

outreach. As a result, the vast majority of our

although loan growth was particularly strong for

loans are for amounts of less than USD 10,000.

loans above USD 10,000. Still, the figure for the
average loan amount outstanding increased by
less than 10%, to USD 4,870, reflecting the
strong target group orientation of ProCredit Bank.
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ProCredit Bank’s loan portfolio is highly

It is also important to note that a low

diversified, not only in terms of the large

arrears rate has been a key factor in our success

number of borrowers and the absence of large

in lending operations, as it has contributed to a

exposures, but also in terms of the variety of

high degree of operational efficiency. The good

economic activities in which our clients are

repayment performance on the part of the

engaged. Also, there is a low degree of regional

bank’s customers enables the bank to grant

concentration, with 78% of all borrowers being

more loans to an ever-increasing number of

located outside the capital in one of the 14 other

entrepreneurs and enterprises.

Loan Portfolio Quality (Arrears > 30 days)

Number of Outstanding Loans
by Loan Size (31-Dec-03)
in % of Loan Portfolio
II
9%

Loan Size
Ia - up to USD 1,000
Ib - USD 1,001 to USD 10,000
II - USD 10,001 to USD 50,000
III - > USD 50,000

III
1%

3.0
Total Write Offs for 2003: 0 USD
2.5

2.0
Ia
44%

1.5

Ib
46%
1.0

0.5

0.0
Jan-03

Feb-03 Mar-03 Apr-03 May-03 Jun-03

Jul-03

Aug-03 Sep-03 Oct-03 Nov-03 Dec-03

cities in which ProCredit Bank operates. This

The challenge which ProCredit Bank

has helped ProCredit Bank to maintain a very

now faces is to develop its retail business with

high level of portfolio quality since the start of

the same professionalism as it has shown in

its operations. The payment performance of all

developing its credit business, and to build the

borrowers is closely monitored, and the share of

same trust on the part of private households

overdue loans (>30 days, portfolio at risk) has

that it has been able to build with private enter-

generally been kept below 0.5%. Ukrainian

prises. It is our declared aim to develop into a

small businesses thus confirm what we have

full-service bank, providing all the types of

experienced in countries all over the world: the

banking services that businesses and private

repayment record of micro, small and medium-

individuals expect from a modern and profes-

sized enterprises is outstanding, and these clients

sional bank.

belong to the low-risk category of borrowers.

Business Review

Diversification of the Client Base
Client Deposits

Volume
(in USD million)
12

Number
(in '000)
14

ProCredit Bank increased the
number of its full-service branches

12
9
10

from six at the beginning of 2003 to
12 at the end of the year. In the
course of 2004, ProCredit Bank will

8
6
6

transform all its remaining representative offices into full-service
branches, and the total number of

4
3
2

full-service branches is planned to
reach 30. The opening of additional
full-service branches is of particular

0

0
Jan-03 Feb-03 Mar-03 Apr-03 May-03 Jun-03 Jul-03 Aug-03 Sep-03 Oct-03 Nov-03 Dec-03
Term

Sight

Number

importance for ProCredit Bank’s
deposit business. Although in 2003
the volume of deposits increased
threefold, from USD 3.9 million to
USD 11.6 million, deposit growth is still insufficient to finance the bank’s booming lending
operations.
Accordingly, 2004 will see a strategic
shift in ProCredit Bank’s business operations.
While in the past, the bank was primarily a
provider of financial services, and above all
credit, to the local business community,
ProCredit Bank now aims to strengthen its position in the retail market. The name change from
“Microfinance Bank” to “ProCredit Bank” and
the ongoing refurbishment of the bank’s
branches reflect this decision. Further branch
expansion is underway, new client advisors
have been trained, and the bank will broaden
its range of retail products. This should lead to
a significant increase in ProCredit Bank’s
deposit base, which the bank expects to triple
during the course of 2004.
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The number of accounts, most of them
current accounts, increased to more than 13,000
in 2003. This development was accompanied by

Domestic Money Transfers
Volume
(in USD million)
45

Number
(in '000)
45

a fourfold increase in the number of money
40

40

the bank is handling almost 40,000 domestic

35

35

payments per month.

30

30

25

25

International money transfers have also

20

20

developed positively, although the overall

15

15

10

10

5

5

transfers effected via ProCredit Bank. Currently,

volume of such transfers is lower. Total international

payments

through

ProCredit

Bank

reached a volume of just under USD 2.5 million

0

0

in December 2003.

Jan-03

Feb-03

Mar-03

Apr-03

May-03

Jun-03

Incoming

Jul-03

Aug-03

Sep-03

Oct-03

Outgoing

Nov-03

Dec-03

Number

The Ukrainian market for payment cards
is developing rapidly. More and more people are
starting to enjoy the convenience of ATMs, POS
terminals and global acceptance. In this market,
payment cards from ProCredit Bank are becoming increasingly popular; the bank had issued
3,500 cards by the end of 2003. And with inno-

International Money Transfers
Volume
(in USD million)

Number

3.0

250

2.5

200

vative services such as GSM banking, the bank
is offering not only state-of-the-art banking

2.0

150

technology, but also a safe and convenient
service for which there is considerable local

1.5

100

demand. The bank will introduce its own ATMs
1.0

in 2004.
50

0.5

In

2003,

ProCredit

Bank

issued

unsecured local currency bonds in the amount
of UAH 11.9 million (USD 2.23 million), or 25% of
its charter capital (the maximum amount
allowed by Ukrainian law). The issue was
successfully placed in the local market and was
purchased by three commercial investors.

0.0

0
Jan-03

Feb-03

Mar-03
Incoming

Apr-03

May-03

Jun-03

Jul-03
Outgoing

Aug-03

Sep-03

Oct-03

Nov-03
Number

Dec-03

Business Review

Financial Performance

In light of ProCredit Bank’s strong
performance in its lending operations and in

As in previous years, the development of

anticipation of further growth in 2004, the

ProCredit Bank was driven primarily by the

bank’s shareholders decided to increase its cap-

growth in its business loan portfolio, which

ital by USD 5.0 million. Thus, the BIS capital

accounts for almost 80% of total assets. The

stood at a comfortable 23.2% by the end of

success in business lending resulted in total

2003, which is also sufficient to support further

assets of USD 72.1 million, compared to USD

asset growth throughout 2004.

31.3 million at the end of 2002. As the loan
growth was not accompanied by a similar

The bank closed the year with a net profit

increase in deposits, other sources of financing

after tax of USD 403,000 (compared to USD 1.0

had to be mobilised. This led to a significant

million in 2002), resulting in a return on average

increase in liabilities to international financial

equity of 4%. Operational income increased by
54%, which was mostly due to the increased
income from loan operations. However, gains
from the revaluation of euro-denominated
assets did not influence the income position of
the bank as significantly as in 2002. Revaluation
gains dropped from USD 1.0 million to USD
399,000.
Another reason for the reduced net profit
compared to 2002 was the significant increase
in the bank’s administrative and staff expenses.
In 2003, the bank invested heavily in its branch
network and upgraded its communication lines.
The number of staff increased by 155, or 54%,
with a number of these individuals being hired

institutions, which rose by USD 25.3 million. In

to fill key staff positions in the head office.

addition, ProCredit Bank raised USD 9.2 million

Finally, the name change and an extensive mar-

in the local capital markets by means of a bond

keting campaign towards the end of the year

issue and on the interbank market. At the end of

contributed to the rise in costs. The money was

2003, the ratio of liquid assets to total assets

well spent as it resulted in a strengthened

was 14.6%, which was sufficient given the matu-

organisational structure and improved image for

rity structure of the bank’s liabilities and the still

the bank, both in the sense of public perception

limited size of its deposit base.

and in terms of the appearance of the branches.
The investments were necessary to continue the
growth in the bank’s lending operations, and in
order to increase ProCredit Bank’s share in the
retail market, particularly in regard to deposits.
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Outlook
2004 will be an important year for
ProCredit Bank, as we plan to complete the
bank’s transformation from a predominantly
credit-granting institution for small businesses
into a full-service bank for all private businesses
and individuals. This will also promote the integration of ProCredit Bank into the local financial
sector. Only by mobilising deposits in the local
market will ProCredit Bank be able to fully meet
the needs of the small enterprise sector.
To achieve this, the number of full-service
branches will more than double, partly by transforming existing representative offices into fullservice branches. We will offer tailor-made
deposit products to individuals and businesses,
and expand our range of other retail products in
order to increase the attractiveness of the bank
for the general public. Ongoing staff training
will be combined with intensive marketing
activities.
While we will focus on positioning
ProCredit Bank as a full-service bank in the
retail market, we will also continue to develop
our SME lending operations. With new products
and streamlined procedures, we expect the
number of business clients to double during
2004. Accordingly, loan portfolio growth is likely
to exceed 2003 figures. The additional income
from lending operations, combined with close
monitoring of administrative expenses in light of
the envisaged branch expansion, should lead to
improved financial performance at ProCredit
Bank in 2004 despite the further investments
required in the bank’s infrastructure and in staff
development.

Annual Report 2003
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BRANCH NETWORK

In 2003, its third year of operations,

will be opening branches in two cities which are

ProCredit Bank significantly expanded its

not as yet served by ProCredit Bank and, as

branch network. By the end of the year, the bank

such, represent “new territory” for our institu-

had a total of 23 branches and representative

tion. Altogether, we will add a further 18 full-

offices in 15 cities throughout Ukraine. In 12 of

service branches to our network in 2004.

these 23 locations, customers had access to the
bank’s full range of services; in 11 locations they
were offered our high-quality credit services.

We aim to better fulfil our customers’
needs and expectations not only by increasing
the overall number of branches, however, but by

In 2004, we plan to greatly expand our

significantly improving the branches in terms of

branch network: Firstly, all representative

their location and interiors as well. Our

offices apart from Slavutich will be converted

customers will increasingly be able to find us in

into full-service branches. Secondly, in those

the city centre. And our new, modern customer

cities in which we are already offering all serv-

centres, which will share a uniform design at all

ices to our customers, we will proceed to open

locations throughout the country, will allow us

additional full-service branches. And last but

to provide even better service to our customers

not least, with Zaporizhzhya and Mykolayiv, we

in the future.
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Organisation, Staff and Staff Development

ORGANISATION, STAFF AND STAFF DEVELOPMENT

a

of the audit department. The measures taken in

customer-oriented, full-service bank in 2003

these two areas allowed us to significantly

involved a number of changes to the bank’s

increase the control and oversight of the

organisational structure. In particular, changes

branches by head office. In 2004, our main

were made at the head office, where staffing

objective will be to expand the budgeting and

levels were considerably increased over the

controlling department in order to increase our

past year in order to boost capacity. Changes

efficiency in allocating limited resources. The

took place in regard to both front-office and

further strengthening of the administration

back-office functions. In terms of back-office

department in 2004 will make a further

functions, the main changes were the establish-

contribution in this area.

ProCredit

Bank’s

evolution

into

ment of a finance division and the restructuring

Organisational Structure

Committees:
- Credit Committee
- Asset/Liability
- Risk Committee
- Internal Audit
- IT Committee

Chief Financial Officer

General Assembly
of Shareholders
Supervisory
Board

Audit
Committee

Management
Board

Internal Audit

General Manager

First Deputy General
Manager

Kyiv

Accounting

Business Client
Development

Retail

Lviv

Treasury

Credit Risk
Management

Branch
Development

Kharkiv

Budgeting and
Controlling

IT

Marketing

Donetsk

Settlement

Legal

Human
Resources

Odessa

Methodology

Administration

Dnipropetrovsk
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The most significant changes in the
organisational structure of the bank, from our
customers’ point of view, were the creation of a
business client development department, which
has enabled us to work more intensively with
our business customers, and the expansion of
our retail department, which has allowed us to
significantly improve our customer service and
to offer new, innovative deposit facilities. In
2004, we plan to increase staffing levels in
these departments, both within the head office
and in the regions. The business client development department in particular, which, as of the
end of 2003, was operating only in Kyiv, will be
expanded considerably in the coming year to
cover all regions of the country. The retail
department will be expanded as well, with the

In the course of 2003, a total of 210 new

creation of a Deposit Promotion and Training

employees were recruited, while overall, the

Unit and of a task force for the introduction of

number of employees increased from 290 to

ATMs.

445. The average age of our employees is 27.
In addition to the establishment of

As a young, fast-growing institution,

appropriate organisational structures in the

ProCredit Bank offers its staff members attrac-

head office and in the branches which can sup-

tive, fast-track career opportunities in an inter-

port the dynamic growth of the bank, the provi-

national environment. Our staff members, many

sion of both basic and advanced training for our

of whom are young university graduates, have

employees was and is an important aspect of

the chance to prove themselves and to grow

ProCredit Bank’s transformation into a full-

within the institution. Achievement-oriented

service bank. During the year 2003, ProCredit

salary structures and a pleasant and open work-

Bank gave three seminars for retail staff, two

place climate are further factors which make

seminars for branch managers, four basic

ProCredit Bank a unique employer.

seminars for loan officers and four seminars for
small loan officers. Moreover, product-specific
training was provided for all employees in
conjunction with the bank’s new retail products.
In addition, some of our employees attended
external seminars as well.
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND ETHICAL STANDARDS

ProCredit Bank’s goal is to promote long-

As illustrated elsewhere in this report,

term sustainable development. An important

ProCredit Bank does its utmost to work for the

aspect of sustainable growth is the impact eco-

satisfaction of its customers and to support

nomic activity may have on the environment.

them in their economic activities by meeting

Generally speaking, bank operations have a

their financial needs. Needless to say, the

limited impact on the environment and in terms

quality of our services must be high enough to

of ecological issues. However, by incorporating

meet the expectations of demanding customers.

environmental issues into its loan approval

ProCredit Bank closely monitors its day-to-day

process, a bank may influence or raise environ-

activities to ensure that it is always in compli-

mental awareness on the part of its customers.

ance with the procedural and ethical framework

Even though ProCredit Bank’s lending decisions

which enables sound banking operations and

obviously rely mainly on financial and socio-

transparency in financial transactions. One of

economic analyses, environmental factors play

our most important rules is that the bank must

an important role too. Part of our Environmental

not conduct or support transactions involving

Policy is an exclusion list which defines a num-

funds which may be suspected to have origi-

ber of ecologically hazardous economic activi-

nated from criminal activities, and therefore,

ties that may not be financed with a ProCredit

compliance with the legal requirements for the

loan. Although the legal framework for environ-

prevention of money laundering is given special

mental protection in Ukraine is still weak,

emphasis. The operational modules of ProCredit

environmental issues are taken into considera-

Bank’s IT system are designed to detect and

tion in credit committee decisions because we

track suspicious transactions, and the anti-

firmly believe that ecologically detrimental

money laundering compliance officer reports on

activities cannot be sustainable in the long run.

a regular basis to the local authorities.

ProCredit Bank’s environmental officer is

We are also careful to ensure that our

responsible for monitoring the implementation

employees do not take advantage of their posi-

of the bank’s Environmental Policy and for pro-

tion in the bank. Accordingly, employees are not

viding training to bank staff on environmental

permitted to handle transactions in which they

issues in the framework of our internal training

themselves, or their relatives or friends, have a

programmes. The loan officers working with

material interest. Employees who are in doubt

larger companies, in particular, have a responsi-

concerning ethical questions are encouraged to

bility to focus on environmental issues as a part

contact their immediate supervisors. The high

of their duties.

ethical standards of ProCredit Bank are
reflected in our Code of Conduct, which our staff
members sign upon employment, and are asked
to sign once again each year in order to reaffirm
their commitment to these standards.
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Our Clients

OUR CLIENTS

Food Production

Textile Business

How a movie helped to launch a business

The curtain rises on another new outlet

Yuliya, 40, has been running a private busi-

Until 1995 Lyudmila, 45, had devoted her life

ness since 1996. Earlier she was involved in the

to teaching children. She was a sewing instructor at

wholesale grocery business. After seeing the movie

the Youth Community Centre in her native city of

“The Roses”, in which the heroine establishes a pâté

Gorlovka. In 1995 she decided to start selling window

production business, she decided to give it a try her-

curtains which she made herself. Her curtains were

self. Parallel to the grocery trade, she began produc-

immediately in high demand due to their very original

tion of semi-finished food products. She opened her

design. By March 2003, Lyudmila owned three retail

own plant producing semi-finished products (meat

outlets offering a wide variety of curtains at the

ravioli, stuffed cabbage leaves, pâté, pancakes, etc.).

central market in Gorlovka.

Her products are now available in shops throughout
the city and the region.

She applied to ProCredit Bank for a loan
because its individual approach and prompt loan

She approached ProCredit Bank to obtain

disbursement procedures appealed to her. The loan

financing to launch a new activity, namely the baking

she obtained from ProCredit Bank allowed her to

of cookies. She had heard of the bank from friends

open a shop specialised in making and selling

who were former clients of the bank, and decided to

curtains. Her equity rose by 30%, sales increased by

become a client herself. She obtained a loan in the

70%, and the number of clients is growing every day.

amount of UAH 20,000. Yuliya liked the professional-

Lyudmila was very satisfied with the service she

ism of the bank’s employees and its fast and high-

received from ProCredit Bank and is planning to take

quality service, and as a result she opened a sight

out another loan with our bank in the future to open

account with ProCredit Bank as well and began

an additional shop in the city centre.

actively using the bank’s services. Her business prospered, and soon Yuliya’s products were available in
over 100 sales outlets in the area. The number of
employees rose to 40. Yuliya now plans to launch a
new activity, namely the production of rye bread. She
has purchased equipment with the help of a loan and
has hired an experienced production engineer.
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Printing Business

Goldsmith and Jewellery Wholesale

Credit for a print shop – with a minimum of paperwork

A jewellery business turns into a goldmine

Vitaliy, 26, started his own business in 1998.
In July 1999, he established and registered a legal
entity. In the beginning, the company’s equipment
consisted of two computers, a scanner and a printer.
A black-and-white risograph digital printer, acquired
in 1998, was the only significant piece of equipment.
Over the next five years, they bought one more risograph, two offset printing presses for colour printing,
equipment for photo typesetting, a printing frame,
and a paper cutter. The company also increased the
number of its employees to 20. They are young butex-

Olexander, 34, is a goldsmith and jewellery
wholesaler with over seven years of experience.
His business started when, for lack of money, he
made brass wedding rings for himself and his bride
on a lathe in the factory where he worked as a
turner. He soon began to work as a jeweller’s
apprentice. Gradually, Olexander saved a small
amount of capital and started to work independently with his own apprentices. This is how he
started his jeweller’s workshop, which now
employs 10 goldsmiths and several apprentices.

perienced specialists, many of whom have been with
the company since it began its operations. At present
the print shop is a leader in its industry in the Donetsk
region.
Due to the natural pressures of business
expansion, they had the idea of applying to a bank to
raise additional funds. ProCredit Bank was their first
choice, because the bank kept paperwork to a minimum and its services met a high professional
standard. The results became apparent almost immediately: The credit funds were used to purchase stateof-the-art equipment which allowed the company to
considerably expand its production capacity. In order
to achieve greater efficiency, the company now
requires additional production facilities, as its rented
premises hardly provide enough room for all of its
production equipment. Therefore, in the very near
future, the company plans to take out another loan.

Wholesale buyers who were already clients
of our bank recommended ProCredit Bank to
Olexander. He lacked sufficient raw materials to
execute all his orders, and therefore required a
loan to purchase gold to increase his output. He
was especially pleased with the efficiency and professionalism of our service, as well as with the fact
that we helped him to analyse his business. With
the help of our loans, Olexander was able to make
a significant investment in fixed assets. He
purchased land for the construction of a new
workshop, bought an additional vehicle for his
business, and bought a suite of offices – all within
just six months of starting to do business with
our bank.
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Transportation Services

Production and Installation
of Windows and Doors

Faster and better

A ProCredit Bank loan opens the door to opportunity

Olexander is 39 years old. At the time his

After graduating from Donetsk Polytechnic

friends advised him to apply to ProCredit Bank for a

Institute, Serhiy and Yuriy, the founders of Bars Ltd.,

loan, he and his wife Lyudmila were operating a pas-

first worked as employees of private companies. Not

senger transportation service; he owned two “Gazel”

satisfied with working for others, they decided to

minibuses and one “Sobol” minibus. On his first visit

launch their own business. They started with the pur-

to the bank, Olexander was impressed by the atten-

chase and installation of secure windows and doors,

tive and friendly approach of the loan officer who

but then launched their own production. Having con-

served him. Upon completion of the financial analy-

ducted an analysis of the market for metal-and-plastic

sis, the bank approved a loan for the purchase of an

doors and windows in Mariupol and of the key pro-

additional “Gazel” minibus. It did not take long to see

ducers, they bought the necessary equipment and, in

results: the minibus began to make a sustainable

February 2001, they established Bars Ltd.

profit. Then Olexander decided to apply to ProCredit
Bank again, this time for a loan to construct a house.

Later, they decided to buy out a founding
partner with whom they had had disagreements in

Striving to develop his business, Olexander

regard to the strategic development of the company.

applied for a repeat loan to purchase two new Iveco

To do so, they required additional funds. After com-

minibuses. All his minibuses operate along central

paring the loan terms and conditions, including docu-

city routes. Business is growing, and he is earning a

mentation requirements and processing time, offered

stable profit. He does not intend to stop there, how-

by banks in Mariupol, they chose ProCredit Bank. One

ever. Olexander plans to apply to ProCredit Bank

week after their first visit to the bank they received a

again to take out a loan for the next Iveco minibus.

loan in the amount of USD 32,800. Yuriy was
im-pressed with the prompt and friendly service, the
flexible collateral requirements, and reasonable
interest rates. The loan helped to solve a problem
which had been hampering the development of the
company. Once it had been granted, productivity and
output soared, going up 50%. Bars Ltd. intends to
continue its mutually beneficial relationship with
ProCredit Bank and will take out loans in the future
to expand its production facilities and upgrade its
equipment.
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Catering Services

Textile Business

Local food that’s popular with visitors too

Sewing as a second chance

Annual Report 2003

Yuriy, 32, gained his first experience in trade

Galina is 41 years old and a graduate of a

through a job as a manager in a warehouse in

specialised dressmaking college. Five years ago

Slavyansk. He and his wife Tatyana began their own

Galina, who must support her family, decided to open

business, selling food products from the trade

her own dressmaking workshop. Galina’s partner is a

pavilion in their apartment estate in Slavyansk. They

president of the charity “The Road Home”, which

were able to gradually enlarge their range of products

helps give former drug addicts, alcoholics, prisoners

and increase their turnover. The couple then opened a

and other underprivileged women a chance at a new

small café in the national Ukrainian style.

life. In cooperation with Galina, the charity decided to
train such women and provide them with jobs at the

They applied for their first loan in order to

dressmaking workshop. Today this idea has become a

enlarge the café’s premises, combining new and

reality: The finished goods produced by the workshop

existing buildings into one café, “Shinok”. At the

are sold, both retail and wholesale, at a local market.

same time, they mounted an awning, upgraded the
furnishings, and added a fireplace to the décor. The

Galina heard about the bank through

café is becoming very popular with both locals and

advertising, namely a banner near the bank branch.

guests in Slavyansk, a resort city. Moreover, their

Her first impression was of fast and professional serv-

distribution network is expanding: The couple pur-

ice. Galina obtained a loan in the amount of USD

chased, renovated and opened a trade pavilion in

2,000 to purchase material (cloth, accessories) for the

another part of the city. Their next loan financed the

spring season. In the future she plans to renovate her

purchase of the land on which their café is located,

premises in order to improve working conditions in

which they had previously been renting. They have

her workshop.

just completed the construction of additional
premises for the sale of chebureki and doughnuts.
Before they began doing business with ProCredit
Bank, Yuriy and Tatyana had never before obtained a
loan. They had had a certain impression of banks
based on the mass media and on feedback from
friends, but at ProCredit Bank, they were impressed
by the simplicity of the decision-making process and
the loan disbursement procedure.
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Trade and Transportation Services

Retail and Catering Services

Different businesses, same success

Renovation boosts sales

Iryna, 36, is from Kyiv. After completing her

Nadiya, 37, started her career as a shop assis-

teacher training, she worked for 10 years at a

tant at a shoe store. When the management decided

secondary school. She enjoyed her occupation very

to close the store, Nadiya found the courage to invest

much, but the low pay made her decide to start her

her savings to first rent, and then purchase the store’s

own business. Becoming an entrepreneur was not

run-down premises, in which she established a café-

easy for Iryna, because she lacked business

bar. In 2002 an advertising leaflet put out by the bank

experience and had only limited financial resources.

found its way into the bar, and Nadiya decided to take

She began by purchasing vegetables at a wholesale

out a loan to renovate her premises. Before the reno-

warehouse and selling them at the market; this was

vation, the interior of the bar was not appealing; after

her first sales outlet. She then decided to open a

renovation, the bar was more attractive and began to

kiosk and sell household equipment, but she didn’t

do much better business. In Nadiya’s opinion, without

have enough funds to do so. Her friends advised her

a loan, it would have taken her quite a long time to

to go to the bank. That’s when she first applied for

save enough money to achieve the same good

a loan.

results.
Iryna had always thought that banks were

Nadiya next had an opportunity to rent the

interested in lending only to big enterprises, but her

premises of a village store located close to her home.

first meeting at ProCredit Bank changed her mind. The

She used another ProCredit Bank loan to renovate the

bank’s credit experts carried out a professional

store premises and to purchase shop equipment and

analysis of her business, and within a very short

inventory. Over time, managing both the store and the

period of time she received her first loan in the

café-bar, Nadiya gained considerable experience. On

amount of USD 2,000. She says, “The bank encour-

the strength of her experience and self-confidence,

aged us to go on with what we were doing and made

she decided to purchase the rented premises, and

us believe in a prosperous future”.

applied to the bank for a larger loan in order to do so.
She plans to continue to take out loans in the future,

This first loan enabled Iryna to open a small

which, in her opinion, are necessary not only for

shop. That was a little over two years ago. Since then

survival in a competitive market, but also for the

she has received many more loans from the bank, and

successful development of her business.

step by step she has expanded her business; she now
sells poultry and fish as well.
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CONTACT ADDRESSES

Head Office:
Kyiv
86 Bozhenka Str.
Tel. (044) 490 60 80
Fax (044) 490 60 81
procreditbank@procreditbank.com.ua
Branches:
Kyiv 1
12-A Zolotoustivska Str., Kyiv 01135
Tel. (044) 569 30 72
procreditbank@procreditbank.com.ua
Kyiv 2
2A Kharkovskoe Shosse
Tel. (044) 559 02 02
Fax (044) 559 82 00
procreditbank@procreditbank.com.ua
Kyiv 3
29-V Timoshenko Str., Kyiv 04205
Tel. (044) 467 86 46 (-60)
procreditbank@procreditbank.com.ua
Kyiv 4
26 Bazhana Av., Kyiv 02140
Tel. (044) 201 41 49 (-50)
procreditbank@procreditbank.com.ua
Kyiv 5
86 Bozhenka Str.
Tel. (044) 490 60 40
Fax (044) 490 60 41
procreditbank@procreditbank.com.ua
Kyiv 6
Prospect Pobedy 103
Tel. (044) 424-99-98
procreditbank@procreditbank.com.ua
Bila Tserkva
Blvd 50-letiia Pobedy 15
Tel. (04463) 444 19
Fax (04463) 444 21
bila_tserkva@bel.com.ua
Dnipropetrovsk 1
4a Karla Libknechta Str.
Tel./Fax (0562) 349 222 340 322
info@dnepr.procreditbank.com.ua

Dnipropetrovsk 2
9 Moskovskaya Str., 2nd floor
Tel. (0562) 349 222
Fax (0562) 340 222
info@dnepr.procreditbank.com.ua

Lviv 2
3 Basarab Str.
Tel. (0322) 977 260
Fax (0322) 977 820
office@lviv.procreditbank.com.ua

Donetsk 1
34 Chervonoarmiyska Str.
Tel. (062) 345 32 00 (-11)
Fax (062) 345 32 09 (-06)
pcb@donetsk.procreditbank.com.ua

Mariupol
77 Metalurgiv Av.
Tel. (0629) 41 28 04
Fax (0629) 41 28 05
procreditbank@mp.farlep.net

Donetsk 2
23 Blvd Pushkina
Tel. (062) 345 32 00 (-11)
Fax (062) 345 32 09 (-06)
pcb@donetsk.procreditbank.com.ua

Odessa 1
121 V. Arnautska Str.
Tel. (048) 738 53 43 (-40)
Fax (0482) 260 806
credit@odessa.procreditbank.com.ua

Ivano-Frankivsk
11 Striltsiv
Tel./Fax (0342) 77 58 58
Mariupolprocreditbank@mp.procreditbank.com.ua

Odessa 2
33 Bunina Str.
Tel. (048) 738 53 43 (-40)
Fax (0482) 260 806
credit@odessa.procreditbank.com.ua

Kharkiv 1
65-V Pavlova Str.
Tel. (057) 771 63 10 (15)
Fax (057) 771 63 17
bank@kharkiv.procreditbank.com.ua

Poltava
19/10 Kotliarevskogo Str.
Tel./Fax (0532) 506 203
procreditbank@ukrsat.poltava.ua
Representative Offices:

Kharkiv 2
2/15 K. Marks Str.
Tel. (0572) 28 94 28
Fax (0572) 28 94 39
bank@kharkiv.procreditbank.com.ua

Horlivka
76 Rudakova Str.
Tel. (06242) 221 64, 251 89
procreditbank@ghost.dn.ua

Kharkiv 3
13/2 Kooperatyvna Str.
Tel. (0572) 191 879 (-873)
Fax (0572) 176 144
bank@kharkiv.procreditbank.com.ua

Makiivka
56 Lenina St.
Tel. (06232) 631 14
Fax (06232) 631 12
procreditbank@icm.dn.ua

Kramatorsk
38 Sotsialistychna Str.
Tel. (06264) 41 47 87, 41 47 64
procreditbank@krm.dn.ua

Slavutich
2 Heroiv Dnipra Str.
Tel./Fax (04479) 249 05
Slavutich@procreditbank.com.ua

Lviv 1
33 Gorodotska Str.
Tel. (0322) 987 345
Fax (0322) 725 057
office@lviv.procreditbank.com.ua

Sumy
2 Kozatskiy Val Str.
Tel. (0542) 371 440
Fax (0542) 371 444
procreditbank@vcity.sumy.ua
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BALANCE SHEET, AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2003
(IN US DOLLARS AND IN THOUSANDS)

Notes
ASSETS
Cash and balances with the National Bank of Ukraine
10
Loans and advances to banks, less allowance for loan losses
11, 21
Loans and advances to customers, less allowance for loan losses
12
Income tax assets
9
Fixed and intangible assets, less accumulated depreciation and amortisation
13
Other assets, less allowance for other losses
14, 21
TOTAL ASSETS

2003

2002

2,500
7,997
57,423
668
3,250
222
72,060

398
3,013
25,031
221
2,550
124
31,337

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Deposits from banks
Loans from international financial organizations ("IFO”)
Customer accounts
Debt securities issued
Income tax liabilities

11,142
31,892
11,558
2,300
-

1,933
15,771
3,931
80

43
56,935

25
21,740

14,067
146
912
15,125

8,941
146
510
9,597

72,060

31,337

15, 21
16, 21
17, 21
18
9

Other liabilities
Total liabilities
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Share capital
Share premium
Retained earnings
Total shareholders’ equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

19

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. The Independent Auditors’ Report is on page 1.
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(IN US DOLLARS AND IN THOUSANDS)

Notes
4, 21
4, 21

2003
7,239
(2,275)

2002
3,062
(697)

NET INTEREST INCOME BEFORE PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES

4

4,964

2,365

Provision for loan losses

5

(1,102)

(567)

3,862

1,798

541
1,796
(264)

1,128
1,048
(87)

85

52

NET NON-INTEREST INCOME

2,158

2,141

OPERATING INCOME

6,020

3,939

(5,307)

(2,392)

713

1,547

(12)

(8)

701

1,539

(298)

(546)

403

993

Interest income
Interest expense

NET INTEREST INCOME
Net gain on foreign exchange operations
Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense

6
7
7

Other income

OPERATING EXPENSES

8

PROFIT BEFORE OTHER PROVISIONS AND INCOME TAX
Provision for losses on other transactions

5

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
Income tax expense
NET PROFIT

9

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. The Independent Auditors’ Report is on page 1.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(IN US DOLLARS AND IN THOUSANDS)

Notes
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Interest, fees and commissions received
Interest, fees and commissions paid
Dealing in foreign currency, net
Other operating income
Salaries and salary related expenses
Other operating and administrative expenses
Operating profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in operating assets:
Minimum reserve on correspondent account with NBU
Amounts due from other banks
Loans and advances to customers
Other assets
Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
Amounts due to other banks
Amounts due to customers
Other liabilities
Net cash outflow from operating activities before income taxes
Income tax paid
Net cash outflow from operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of fixed assets
Net cash outflow from investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Issue of share capital
Long-term loans received from international financial organizations
Debt securities issued
Net cash inflow from financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

10
10

2003

2002

9,344
(2,158)
142
85
(2,490)
(2,295)
2,628

4,568
(874)
121
52
(1,049)
(1,062)
1,756

(1,050)
(5,639)
(33,214)
(111)

(328)
824
(15,296)
(80)

9,188
7,515

(427)
2,391

18
(20,665)
(825)
(21,490)

(9)
(11,169)
(475)
(11,644)

(1,420)
(1,420)

(1,633)
(1,633)

5,124
15,919
2,274
23,317

–
12,335
–
12,335

–

(1)

407
1,671
2,078

(943)
2,614
1,671

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. The Independent Auditors’ Report is on page 1.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003 (IN US DOLLARS AND IN THOUSANDS)
Share capital

Share premium

(Accumulated deficit)/
Retained earnings

Total

8,999

147

(485)

8,661

–
(58)

–
(1)

993
2

993
(57)

31 December 2002

8,941

146

510

9,597

Share capital increase
Net profit for the year

5,124
–

–
–

–
403

5,124
403

Translation difference

2

–

(1)

1

14,067

146

912

15,125

31 December 2001
Net profit
Translation difference

31 December 2003

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. The Independent Auditors’ Report is on page 1.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003 AND 2002
(IN US DOLLARS AND IN THOUSANDS)

1. ORGANIZATION
ProCredit Bank (the “Bank”) was founded on 21 December 2000
as a Closed Joint Stock Company under the laws of Ukraine. The
Bank was registered by the National Bank of Ukraine (the “NBU”)
on 28 December 2000. On 30 September 2003 the Bank changed
its name from Micro Finance Bank to ProCredit Bank. Currently the
Bank operates under general license #195 granted by the NBU on
29 January 2001, which provides the Bank with the right to conduct banking operations, including currency operations. The
Bank’s primary business consists of providing universal services
to private entrepreneurs and small and micro businesses.
The Bank’s head office and principal place of business is at 86,
Bozhenka str., Kyiv. As at 31 December 2003 the Bank had 9 representative offices outside Kyiv – in Poltava, Sumy, Makyivka,
Kramatorsk, Mariupol, Dnipropetrovsk, Bila Tserkva, Gorlovka,
Ivano-Frankivsk – and 10 outlets: in Odessa, Donetsk, 2 outlets
in Lviv, 2 outlets in Kharkiv and 4 outlets in Kyiv.
The Bank had on average 375 employees during the year 2003
(2002 – 182 employees).
These financial statements were authorised for issue by the
Management Board on 27 February 2004.
2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates. Estimates that are particularly susceptible to change relate to the provisions for losses on loans and
impairment and the fair value of financial instruments.
Measurement and presentation currency
For the purpose of these financial statements the Bank separately identifies measurement and presentation currency in
accordance with the requirements of SIC-19 “Reporting currency
– Measurement and Presentation of Financial Statements under
IAS 21 and IAS 29” issued by the Standing Interpretations Committee of the International Financial Reporting Standards Board.
Following the guidance to this interpretation, the Bank has
determined that based on the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to the Bank, the measurement currency for its transactions should be the Ukrainian
Hryvnia (“UAH”). This means that transactions in currencies other than the Ukrainian Hryvnia are treated as transactions in foreign currency.
In 2003, the Bank changed the presentation currency from Euro
to the US dollar (“USD”), at the request of the foreign shareholders, who are principal users of these financial statements.
Balances at the reporting date, which initially have been measured in Ukrainian Hryvnia, are translated at the period-end
exchange rate (at 31 December 2003 – 5.3315 UAH/USD, and at
31 December 2002 – 5.3324 UAH/USD) and transactions reported in the statement of operations are translated at the average
monthly exchange rates. All resulting differences are reported
directly in shareholders’ equity as translation difference.

Accounting basis – The financial statements of the Bank have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”). These financial statements are presented in
thousands of United States Dollars (“USD”). These financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost
convention.
The Bank maintains its accounting records in accordance with
Ukrainian accounting regulations applicable for banks. These
financial statements have been prepared from the Ukrainian statutory accounting records and have been adjusted to conform to
IFRS.
Shareholders’ equity as at 31 Decmber 2003 and 31 December
2002 and profit for the year then ended are reconciled between
Ukrainian Accounting Legislation and IFRS as follows:
2003
2002
Shareholders’ equity
Profit/(loss) account Shareholders’equity Profit/(loss) account
Statutory Accounting Legislation
9,340
251
9,146
649
Effect of accrued interest, net
–
–
–
57
Effect of IAS 39
72
(239)
311
272
Provisions for loan and other losses
555
546
9
9
Deferred taxation
70
(151)
221
39
Other, net
(37)
(4)
(33)
(33)
Contributed, but not registered with
NBU share capital
5,124
–
–
–
Translation difference
1
–
(57)
–
International Financial Reporting Standards

15,125

403

9,597

993
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Recognition and measurement of financial instruments
The Bank recognizes financial assets and liabilities on its
balance sheet when, and only when, it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases and
sales of financial assets and liabilities are recognized using
settlement date accounting.
Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at cost,
which is the fair value of consideration given or received,
respectively, including or net of any transaction costs incurred,
respectively. The accounting policies for subsequent re-measurement of these items are disclosed in the respective accounting policies set out below.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash, unrestricted balances
on correspondent accounts with the National Bank of Ukraine
(“NBU”), advances to banks in countries included in the Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development (“OECD”),
which may be converted to cash within a short period of time.
For purposes of determining cash flows, the minimum reserve
on correspondent account with the NBU is not included as a
cash equivalent due to restrictions on its availability (Note 10).
Loans and advances to banks
In the normal course of business, the Bank maintains advances
or deposits for various periods of time with other banks. Loans
and advances to banks with a fixed maturity term are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. Those that do not have fixed maturities are carried at
cost. Amounts due from credit institutions are carried net of any
allowance for losses.
Originated loans
Loans originated by the Bank are financial assets that are created by the Bank by providing money directly to a borrower or by
participating in a loan facility, other that those that are originated with the intent to be sold immediately or in the short term,
which are classified as trading investments.
Loans granted by the Bank are initially recognized in accordance
with the policy stated above. The difference between nominal
amount of consideration given and the amortized cost of loans
issued at other than market terms is recognized in the period
the loan is issued as initial recognition adjustment discounting
using market rates at inception and included in profit and loss
account. Loans to customers with fixed maturities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. Those that do not have fixed maturities are carried at
cost. Loans and advances to customers are carried net of any
allowance for loan losses.
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Write off of loans
Loans are written off against allowance for loan losses in case of
uncollectibility of loans and advances, including through repossession of collateral. Loans may only be written off with the
approval of the Board.
Non-accrual loans
Loans are placed on non-accrual status when interest or principal is delinquent for a period in excess of 7 days. Interest
income is not recognized if recovery is doubtful. Subsequent
payments by borrowers are applied to either principal or delinquent interest based on individual arrangements with the
borrower. A non-accrual loan is restored to accrual status when
all principal and interest amounts contractually due are reasonably assured of repayment within a reasonable period.
Allowance for losses
The Bank establishes an allowance for losses of financial assets
when it is probable that the Bank will not be able to collect the
principal and interest according to the contractual terms of
financial assets, which are carried at cost or amortized cost. The
allowance for losses is defined as the difference between carrying amounts and the present value of expected future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
financial asset. For financial assets that do not have fixed maturities, expected future cash flows are discounted using periods
during which the Bank expects to realize the loan.
The determination of the allowance for loan losses is based on
an analysis of the loan portfolio and reflects the amount which,
in the judgment of management, is adequate to provide for losses inherent in the loan portfolio. Specific provisions are made as
a result of a detailed appraisal of risk assets. In addition, provisions are carried to cover potential risks, which although not
specifically identified, are present in the loan portfolio judging
by the previous experience.
The change in the allowance for loan losses is charged to profit
and the total of the allowance for loan losses is deducted in
arriving at loans and advances to customers and banks. Management's evaluation of the allowance is based on the Bank’s
past loss experience, known and inherent risks in the portfolio,
adverse situations that may affect the borrower's ability to
repay, the estimated value of any underlying collateral and
current economic conditions.
It should be understood that estimates of loan losses involve an
exercise of judgment. While it is possible that in particular periods the Bank may sustain losses which are substantial relative
to the allowance for loan losses, it is the judgment of management that the allowance for loan losses is adequate to absorb
losses inherent in the loan portfolio.
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Fixed assets and intangibles
Fixed assets are recorded at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation. Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis
over the following estimated useful lives (in years):
Buildings
Computers and equipment
Furniture and fittings
Computer software

25
3
5–7
5

The carrying amounts of fixed and intangible assets are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess whether they are
recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts, and where carrying values exceed this estimated recoverable amount, assets
are written down to their recoverable amount. An impairment is
recognized in the respective period and is included in other
administrative and operating expenses. After the recognition of
an impairment loss the depreciation charge for fixed assets is
adjusted in future periods to allocate the assets’ revised carrying value, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis
over its remaining useful life.
Low-value assets (with a cost under UAH 1 thousand) are fully
depreciated when placed into operations.
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the length of the
corresponding lease agreement.
Assets under construction are stated at cost and are not depreciated. Depreciation of these assets commences when the related assets are placed in service.
Intangible assets are recorded at historical cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is designed to write off assets
over their estimated useful economic lives and is calculated on a
straight line basis.
Impairment loss
If the recoverable amount of an asset is less that its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable value. The difference being an impairment loss is
recognized as an expense in the profit and loss account for the
year in which it arises.
Operating leases
Leases of assets under which the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained with the lessor are classified as
operating leases.
Bank as lessee
Lease payments under operating lease are recognized as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term and included in
administrative and operating expenses.

Bank as lessor
The Bank presents assets subject to operating leases in the balance sheets according to the nature of the asset. Lease income
from operating leases is recognized in the profit and loss
account on a straight-line basis over the lease term as other
operating income.
Taxation
Taxes on income are computed in accordance with the laws of
the Ukraine. Deferred taxes, if any, are provided on items recognized in different periods for financial reporting purposes and
income tax purposes, using the balance sheet liability method
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled. Deferred tax liabilities, if any, which result from temporary differences, are provided for in full. Deferred tax assets are recorded to the extent that
there is a reasonable expectation that these assets will be
realized.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when:
– the Bank has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts of current tax assets and current tax liabilities;
– the Bank has an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously;
– the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities and assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
Ukraine also has various other than income taxes, which are
assessed on the Bank’s activities. These taxes are included as a
component of operating expenses in the profit and loss account.
Deposits from banks and customers
Customers’ and bank deposits are initially recognized at cost,
which amounts to the issue proceeds less transaction costs
incurred. Subsequently amounts due are stated at amortized
cost and any difference between net proceeds and the redemption value is recognized in the profit and loss account over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Debt securities issued
Debt securities issued represent bonds issued by the Bank to
customers. The amount due is stated at nominal value and any
difference between net proceeds and the redemption value is
recognized in the profit and loss account over the period of the
borrowing using the effective interest method.
Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Bank has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
of the obligation can be made.
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Share capital and share premium
Share capital and premium are recognized at historical cost.
Retirement and other benefit obligations
The Bank does not have any pension arrangements separate
from the state pension system of Ukraine, which requires current contributions by the employer calculated as a percentage of
current gross salary payments; such expense is charged in the
period the related salaries are earned. In addition, the Bank has
no post-retirement benefits or significant other compensated
benefits requiring accrual.
Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements unless it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. A contingent asset is not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.
Recognition of income and expense
Interest income and expense are recognized on an accrual basis
calculated using the effective yield method. The recognition of
interest income is suspended when loans become overdue by
more than 7 days. Commissions and other income are credited
to income when the related transactions are completed. Loan
origination fees are expensed in the period when they incurred.
Non-interest expenses are recognized on an accrual basis.
Foreign currency translation
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Ukrainian Hryvnia at the appropriate
spot rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Foreign
currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of transaction. Profits and losses arising
from these translations are included in net gain on foreign
exchange transactions.
Rates of exchange
The exchange rates at year-end used by the Bank in the preparation of the financial statements are as follows:
2003
2002
UAH/USD
5.3315
5.3324
UAH/EUR

6.6622

5.5329

Offset of financial assets and liabilities – Financial assets and
liabilities are offset and reported net on the balance sheet when
the Bank has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized
amounts and the Bank intends either to settle on a net basis or
to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications and changes in presentation have been
made to the financial statements as of 31 December 2002 to
conform to the presentation as of 31 December 2003.
4. NET INTEREST INCOME

Interest income
Interest on loans and
advances to customers
Interest on loans and
advances to banks
Total interest income

2003

2002

6,915

2,949

324
7,239

113
3,062

Interest expense
Interest on customer accounts
Interest on deposits from banks
Interest on loans from
international financial organizations
Interest on debt securities issued
Total interest expense

595
411

143
101

1,126
143
2,275

453
–
697

Net interest income before
provision for loan losses

4,964

2,365

The movements in loan allowances are as follows:
Loans and
Loans and
advances to
advances to
banks
customers
31 December 2001
3
314
– provision
17
550
– translation difference
–
(3)
31 December 2002
20
861
– provision
22
1,080
– write offs of assets
–
(1)
– translation difference
(5)
5
31 December 2003
37
1,945

Total
317
567
(3)
881
1,102
(1)
–
1,982

5. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The movements in the allowances on other transactions are as
follows:
Other assets
31 December 2001
–
– provision
8
31 December 2002
8
– provision
12
– translation difference
1
31 December 2003
21
The allowances are deducted from the related assets.
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6. NET GAIN ON FOREIGN EXCHANGE OPERATIONS
Net gain on foreign exchange operations comprise:
2003
Dealing, net
142
Translation differences, net
399
Total net gain on foreign
exchange operations
541

9. INCOME TAXES

2002
121
1,007
1,128

7. FEES AND COMMISSIONS INCOME AND EXPENSE

The Bank provides for taxes based on the statutory tax accounts
maintained and prepared in accordance with the Ukrainian
statutory tax regulations which may differ from International
Financial Reporting Standards. During the years ended 31
December 2003 and 2002, the Ukraine’s tax rate for corporations’ profits was 30%. According to the new tax code, that
comes into effect from 1 January 2004, the corporate income tax
is reduced to 25%.
Tax assets and liabilities consist of the following:

Fees and commissions income and expense comprise:
Fees and commissions income:
Settlements and collection
Loan operations
Foreign exchange operations
Other operations
Total fees and commissions income
Fees and commissions expense:
Settlements and collection
Loan operations
Operations with securities
Other operations
Total fees and commissions expense

2003

2002

828
785
173
10
1,796

579
308
95
66
1,048

108
130
22
4
264

43
43
–
1
87

2003
1,932
558
720
369
505
323
240
130
129

2002
823
225
370
153
148
160
110
66
42

104
74
5
218
5,307

58
70
10
157
2,392

8. OPERATING EXPENSES
Salary
Social security costs
Depreciation and amortization
Phone and communications
Marketing and advertising
Office expenses
Operating lease expense
Security
Repairs and maintenance expenses
Business travels and representative
expenses
Professional services fees
Taxes, other than income tax
Other
Total operating expenses

Current tax assets
Deferred tax assets
Tax assets
Current tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Tax liabilities

2003
598
70
668
–
–
–

2002
–
221
221
(80)
–
(80)

The Bank is subject to certain permanent tax differences due to
non-tax deductibility of exchange losses and other expenses
and tax-free regime under local tax regulations.
Deferred taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. Temporary differences as of 31 December 2003 and 2002
relate mostly to different methods of income and expense
recognition as well as to recorded values of certain assets.
Temporary differences as of 31 December 2003 and 2002 comprise:
2003
2002
Deductible differences
– Allowance for loans and advances
to banks and customers
–
789
– Fixed assets
335
257
– Interest expense accrued
and unamortized premium
142
–
– Prepayments
13
–
Total deductible differences
490
1,046
Taxable differences
– Allowance for loans and advances
to banks and customers
70
–
– Interest income accrued
122
–
– Loans to customers
18
Total taxable differences
210
– Net deductible differences
280
– Deferred tax asset (at rate of 25% / 30%) 70
Net deferred tax asset
70

311
311
735
221
221
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Relationships between tax expenses and accounting profit for the
year ended 31 December 2003 and 2002 are explained as follows:
2003
2002
Profit before income taxes
701
1,539
Statutory tax rate
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Movements in allowances for loan losses for the years ended 31
December 2003 and 2002 are disclosed in Note 5.
During 2003, the Bank simultaneously placed with and received
short-term funds from Ukrainian banks in different currencies.
As of 31 December 2003 and 2002, the Bank placed the equivalent of USD 3,562 thousand and USD 388 thousand as deposits,
which were secured by deposits of USD 3,466 thousand and
USD 383 thousand, respectively, received from the same banks
(see Note 15).

30%

30%

Theoretical tax at the statutory tax rate
Tax effect of permanent differences
Effect of change in tax rate

210
51
37

462
84
–

Income tax expense

298

546

12. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Current income tax expense
Deferred tax expense/(deferred tax credit)
Income tax expense

147
151
298

584
(38)
546

Loans and advances to customers comprise:

Deferred tax assets
2003
At beginning of the period
221
(Deferred tax expense)/deferred tax credit (151)
At end of the period
70

2002
183
38
221

10. CASH AND BALANCES WITH THE NATIONAL BANK OF
UKRAINE
The balances with National Bank of Ukraine as of 31 December
2003 and 2002 include USD 1,378 thousand and USD 328 thousand, respectively, which represents the minimum reserve
deposits required by the NBU. The Bank is required to maintain
the reserve balance at the NBU at all times.
Cash and cash equivalents as presented in the statement of
cash flows include the following:
2003
2002
Cash on hand
1,009
192
Correspondent account with the NBU
1,491
206
Total cash and balances with the NBU
2,500
398
Add advances to OECD banks
(included in Note 11)
956
1,601
Less minimum reserve deposit on
correspondent account with the NBU
(1,378)
(328)
Total cash and cash equivalents
2,078
1,671
11. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO BANKS

Advances to banks
Loans to banks
Accrued interest income on
loans and advances to banks
Less allowance for loan losses
Total loans and advances to banks, net

2003
2,948
5,078

2002
1,388
1,644

8
8,034
(37)
7,997

1
3,033
(20)
3,013

Originated loans and advances
Accrued interest income on
loans and advances to customers
Less allowance for loan losses
Total loans and advances
to customers, net
Loans collateralized by real estate
Loans collateralized by
transport facilities
Loans collateralized by equipment
Loans collateralized by others
Loans collateralized by
personal belongings
Loans collateralized by goods
in turnover
Accrued interest income on
loans and advances to customers
Less allowance for loan losses
Total loans and advances
to customers, net

2003
58,870

2002
25,656

498
59,368
(1,945)

236
25,892
(861)

57,423

25,031

35,376

9,796

12,319
7,247
1,647

7,650
3,692
1,821

1,529

1,078

752

1,619

498
59,368
(1,945)

236
25,892
(861)

57,423

25,031

Movements in allowances for loan losses for the years ended 31
December 2003 and 2002 are disclosed in Note 5.
As of 31 December 2003 and 2002 included in loans and
advances to customers are non-accrual loans amounting to USD
158 thousand and USD 66 thousand, respectively, on which
interest was not accrued.
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Analysis by Industry
Trade
Industry and other production
Services
Transport and communications
Agriculture and food processing
Construction
Other
Accrued interest income on loans
and advances to customers
Less allowance for loan losses
Total loans and advances
to customers, net

2003

2002

31,323
9,499
9,114
6,287
330
341
1,976

13,034
4,797
4,094
2,612
574
273
272

498
59,368
(1,945)

236
25,892
(861)

57,423

25,031

As of 31 December 2003 and 2002, prepayments comprise prepayments for intangible and fixed assets.
Movements in allowances for losses for the years ended 31
December 2003 and 2002 are disclosed in Note 5.
15. DEPOSITS FROM BANKS
Deposits from banks comprise:
Time deposits
Accrued interest expense on
deposits from banks
Total deposits from banks

2003
11,114

2002
1,926

28
11,142

7
1,933

13. FIXED AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET
Buildings

At cost
31 December 2002
1,009
Additions
36
Transfers
735
Disposals
–
Translation difference
(1)
31 December 2003
1,779
Accumulated depreciation
and amortization
31 December 2002
66
Depreciation and
amortization expense
102
Disposals
–
31 December 2003
168
Net book value
31 December 2003
1,611
Net book value
31 December 2002
943

Computers
and
equipment

Furniture
and
fittings

Computer
software

Low value
items

Uninstalled
equipment

Total

1,064
610
1
(6)
(1)
1,668

145
168
–
(17)
1
297

225
79
–
–
1
305

246
129
–
(12)
–
363

421
411
(736)
–
–
96

3,110
1,433
–
(35)
–
4,508

203

13

32

246

–

560

414
(5)
612

28
(5)
36

47
–
79

129
(12)
363

–
–
–

720
(22)
1,258

1,056

261

226

–

96

3,250

861

132

193

–

421

2,550

14. OTHER ASSETS
Other assets were as follows at 31 December 2003 and 2002:
Prepayments
Settlements on payment cards
Prepaid expenses
Other assets
Less allowance for losses
Total other assets, net

2003
197
–
19
27
243
(21)
222

2002
109
4
17
2
132
(8)
124

During the year ended 31 December 2003, the Bank increased
its borrowings from banks, entering into mutual placement
agreements with Ukrainian banks (see Note 11).
16. LOANS FROM INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
ORGANIZATIONS
Loans from international financial organizations were as follows
at 31 December 2003 and 2002:
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European Bank for Reconstruction
and Development (“EBRD”)
German-Ukrainian Fund (“GUF”)
Western NIS Enterprise Fund
(“WNISEF”)
International Finance Corporation
(“IFC”)
Black Sea Trade and
Development Bank (“BSTDB”)
Kreditanstalt fur Wiederaufbau (“KfW”)
Accrued interest expense
Total loans from international
financial organizations

2003

2002

9,000
5,416

4,000
4,497

3,650

3,650

3,500

3,500

5,000
5,000
31,566

–
–
15,647

326

124

31,892

15,771

As of 31 December 2003 and 2002 customer accounts of USD
1,959 thousand and USD 69 thousand, respectively, were held
as guarantee against Bank’s operations.
18. DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED
Debt securities issued comprise:

The Bank has a credit line with the EBRD for a total amount of
USD 9,000 thousand. As of 31 December 2003 and 2002, the
amount due to EBRD represents USD 9,000 thousand and USD
4,000 thousand, respectively. The loan bears an average interest
of 4.71% per annum and is to be repaid in seven equal instalments starting from January 2005 on a half-year basis.
The Bank also has a credit line with the German-Ukrainian Fund.
The amounts due as of 31 December 2003 include five agreements that mature in May 2004 - April 2005. The loans bear an
average interest of 3.63% per annum, which is payable quarterly.
The loan received by the Bank from WNISEF comprises two
tranches of: USD 2,000 thousand and USD 1,650 thousand,
respectively. The loans bear an average interest of 5.22% per
annum, which is payable twice a year. The loan is due to be
repaid by five equal instalments in December 2005 - 2007.
The Bank also has a loan from IFC in the amount of USD 3,500
thousand. The loan is to be repaid in seven consecutive equal
semi-annual instalments starting from September 2004. The
loan bears an average interest of 5.18% per annum.
As at 31 December 2003 the principal amount due to BSTDB
comprised USD 5,000 thousand. The loan is to be repaid in January 2007. The loan bears an average interest of 4.65% per
annum.
The Bank also received a USD 5,000 thousand loan from KfW
that matures from June 2004 to June 2007. The loan bears an
average interest of 5.21% per annum.
17. CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS

Repayable on demand
Time deposits
Accrued interest expense on
customer accounts
Total customer accounts
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2003
3,785
7,627

2002
1,619
2,278

146
11,558

34
3,931

2003
Bonds
2,232
Unamortized premium on debt securities issued
22

2002
–
–

Accrued interest expense on debt securities issued 46
Total debt securities issued
2,300

–
–

Proceeds from debt securities issued were USD 2,274 thousand,
representing a premium of USD 42 thousand. It is amortized
over the life of the bonds and is recorded as a reduction of interest expense using the effective interest rate method.
Bonds are denominated in Ukrainian Hryvnia bearing 14% per
annum interest rate.
19. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
As of 31 December 2003 and 2002 share capital authorized,
issued and fully paid comprised 157,302 and 100,000 ordinary
shares respectively with a par value of UAH 476.79 each.
All shares are ranked equally and carry one vote. The share premium represents the excess of contributions received over the
nominal value of shares issued.
During the year ended 31 December 2003 the Bank issued and
fully paid 57,302 ordinary shares.
The difference between the amount of share capital as reported
in these financial statements and those in the foundation documents is due to the change in the Hryvnia - US dollar exchange
rate over the reporting period.
At 31 December 2003 the shareholders of the Bank were:
Shareholder
European Bank for Reconstruction
and Development
International Finance Corporation
Western NIS Enterprise Fund
Internationale Micro Investitionen AG
German-Ukrainian Fund

%
20.0
20.0
20.0
20.0
12.7

Kreditanstalt fur Wiederaufbau (KfW)
Total

7.3
100%
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20. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Taxes
Due to the presence in Ukrainian commercial legislation, and tax
legislation in particular, of provisions allowing more than one
interpretation, and also due to the practice developed in a generally unstable environment by the tax authorities of making
arbitrary judgment of business activities, if a particular treatment based on management’s judgment of the Bank’s business
activities was to be challenged by the tax authorities, the Bank
may be assessed additional taxes, penalties and interest. The
Bank believes that it has already made all tax payments, and
therefore, no allowance was made in the financial statements.
Tax years remain open to review by the tax authorities for three
years.

In the normal course of business the Bank is a party to financial
instruments with off-balance sheet risk in order to meet the
needs of its customers. These instruments, involving varying
degrees of credit risk, are not reflected in the balance sheet.
The Bank’s maximum exposure to credit loss under contingent
liabilities and commitments to extend credit, in the event of nonperformance by the other party where all counterclaims, collateral or security prove valueless, is represented by the contractual amounts of those instruments.
The Bank uses the same credit control and management policies
in undertaking off-balance sheet commitments as it does for onbalance sheet lending.
The risk-weighted amount is obtained by applying credit converPensions and retirement plans
sion factors and counter party risk weightings according to the
Employees receive pension benefits from Ukraine in accordance
principles employed by the Basle Committee on Banking Superwith the laws and regulations of the country. As of 31 December
vision.
2003 and 2002, the Bank was not liable for any supplementary
As at 31 December 2003 and 2002, the nominal or contract
pensions, post-retirement health care, insurance benefits, or
amounts and the risk-weighted credit equivalents of instruretirement indemnities to its current or former employees.
ments with off-balance sheet risks were:
31 December 2003
31 December 2002
Nominal
RiskNominal
Riskamount weighted
amount weighted
amount
Contingent liabilities and
credit commitments
Guarantees issued and similar commitments
Commitments on loans and unused credit lines

19
431

Operating leases
The Bank’s future minimum rental payments under non-cancelable operating leases of buildings in effect as of 31 December
2003 and 2002 are presented in the table below.
2003
2002
Not later than 1 year
58
54
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 1,214
305
More than 5 years
13
–
Total operating lease
1,285
359
Legal proceedings
From time to time and in the normal course of business, claims
against the Bank are received from customers and counterparties. Management is of the opinion that no material unaccrued
losses will be incurred and accordingly no provision has been
made in these financial statements.

19
431

amount

138
21

138
21

21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related parties, as defined by IAS 24, are those counter-parties
that represent:
(a) enterprises that directly, or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, control, or are controlled by, or are under
common control with, the reporting enterprise. (This
includes holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries);
(b) associates – enterprises in which the Bank has significant
influence and which are neither subsidiaries nor joint ventures of the investor;
(c) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the
voting power of the Bank that gives them significant influence over the Bank;
(d) key management personnel, that is, those persons having
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Bank, including directors and
officers of the Bank and close members of the families of
such individuals; and
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(e) enterprises in which a substantial interest in the voting power is owned, directly or indirectly, by any person described in
(c) or (d) or over which such a person is able to exercise significant influence. This includes enterprises owned by directors or major shareholders of the Bank and enterprises that
have a member of key management in common with the
Bank.
In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and not
merely the legal form. The Bank had the following transactions
outstanding with related parties:
Deposits from banks,
including accrued interest
Customer accounts
Loans from international
financial organisations,
including accrued interest

2003

2002

3,1
16

–
–

26,8

15,7

During the years ended 31 December 2003 and 2002 the Bank
originated loans and advances to banks and customers - related
parties amounting to USD 500 thousand and USD 142 thousand,
respectively, which have been repaid in full.
During the years ended 31 December 2003 and 2002 the Bank
received loans and advances from banks and customers - related parties of USD 3,425 thousand and USD 684 thousand,
respectively, and repaid deposits and advances totaling USD
322 thousand and USD 684 thousand, respectively. The Bank
has interest expense accrued in respect of loans and advances
received from related parties, totaling USD 24 thousand as of 31
December 2003.
During the years ended 31 December 2003 and 2002 the Bank
received loans from shareholders of USD 10,000 thousand and
USD 12,335 thousand, respectively. Accrued interest expense on
loans from shareholders was totaling USD 239 thousand and
USD 124 thousand as of 31 December 2003 and 2002 respectively. No EUR-denominated loans were received, however the
translation difference in the amount of USD 1,034 thousand
occurred due to devaluation of the USD against the EUR.
Included in the profit and loss account for the years ended 31
December 2003 and 2002 are the following amounts which
arose due to transactions with related parties:
2003
2002
Interest income
1
Interest expense
1,169
453
Commission expense
80
43
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Transactions with related parties entered into by the Bank
during the years ended 31 December 2003 and 2002 and outstanding as of 31 December 2003 and 2002 were made in the
normal course of business and under arm’s-length conditions.
22. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Estimated fair value disclosures of financial instruments are
made in accordance with the requirements of IAS 32 and IAS 39.
As no readily available market exists for a large part of the
Bank’s financial instruments, judgment is necessary in arriving
at fair value, based on current economic conditions and specific
risks attributable to the instrument. The estimates presented
herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Bank
could realize in a market exchange from the sale of its full holdings of a particular instrument.
As of 31 December 2003 and 2002 the following methods and
assumptions were used by the Bank to estimate the fair value of
each class of financial instrument for which it is practicable to
estimate such value:
Cash and balances with the National Bank of Ukraine
For these short-term instruments the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value.
Loans and advances to banks
For these assets, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate
of fair value.
Loans and advances to customers
The fair value of the loan portfolio is based on the credit and
interest rate characteristics of the individual loans within each
sector of the portfolio. The estimation of the provision for loan
losses includes consideration of risk premiums applicable to
various types of loans based on factors such as the current situation of the economic sector in which each borrower operates,
the economic situation of each borrower and the guarantees
obtained. Accordingly, the provision for loan losses is considered a reasonable estimate of the discount required reflecting
the impact of credit risk.
Deposits from banks
As of 31 December 2003 and 2002 the carrying amount of shortterm deposits of USD 11,142 thousand and USD 1,933 thousand,
respectively, is a reasonable estimate of their fair value.
Loans from international financial organisations (“IFO”) – As of
31 December 2003 and 2002 the carrying amount of loans from
IFOs is reasonable estimate of its fair value.
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Customer accounts
As of 31 December 2003 and 2002 the carrying amount of time
deposits and current accounts of the Bank’s customers is a reasonable estimate of their fair value.
Debt securities issued
Debt securities issued are stated at cost, adjusted for amortization of premium, which approximates fair value.

24. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES
Management of risk is fundamental to the banking business and
is an essential element of the Bank’s operations. The main risks
inherent in the Bank’s operations are those related to credit
exposures, liquidity and market movements in interest rates and
foreign exchange rates. A description of the Bank’s risk management policies in relation to those risks follows.
The Bank manages the following risks:

23. REGULATORY MATTERS
Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum amounts
and ratios (as set forth in the table below) of total and tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets.
Capital is calculated as the amount of restricted and free components of equity, plus the Bank’s provision for general banking
risks, to the extent that the general provisions for loan losses do
not exceed 1.25% of risk-weighted assets.
The ratio was calculated according to the principles employed
by the Basle Committee by applying the following risk estimates
to the assets and off-balance sheet commitments net of
allowances for losses:
Estimate
Description of position
0%
Cash and balances with the National Bank of Ukraine
20%
Loans and advances to banks for up to 1 year
100%
Loans and advances to customers
100%
Other assets
100%
Guarantees issued and similar commitments

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to the availability of sufficient funds to meet
deposit withdrawals and other financial commitments associated with financial instruments as they actually fall due.
In order to manage liquidity risk, the Bank performs monitoring
of future expected cash flows on clients’ and banking operations, which is a part of the assets/liabilities management
process. The Bank’s Treasury Department submits to the management the liquidity analysis report. The Bank’s Assets and Liabilities Committee performs weekly monitoring and analysis of
liquidity risk.
The Board sets limits on the minimum proportion of maturing
funds available to meet deposit withdrawals and on the minimum level on interbank and other borrowing facilities that
should be in place to cover withdrawals at unexpected levels of
demand.
The following table presents an analysis of interest rate risk and
liquidity risk on balance sheet.

The Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios are presented in
the following table:
Capital amounts and ratios

At 31 December 2003
Total capital
Tier 1 capital
At 31 December 2002
Total capital
Tier 1 capital

Actual amount
in USD thousand

For capital
adequacy
purposes
Amount in USD
thousand

Ratio for
capital
adequacy
purposes

Minimum
required
ratio

15,125
15,125

15,894
15,125

25%
24%

8%
4%

9,597

9,946

34%

8%

9,597

9,597

34%

4%
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ASSETS
Loans and advances to
banks, less allowance for
loan losses
Loans and advances
to customers, less allowance
for loan losses
Total interest-earning assets
Cash and balances
with the NBU
Loans and advances to banks
less allowance for loan losses
Accrued interest on loans
and advances to banks
Accrued interest on loans
and advances to customers
Income tax assets
Fixed and intangible assets,
less accumulated depreciation
and amortisation
Other assets, less allowance
for other losses
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks
Loans from international
financial organizations
Customer accounts
Debt securities issued
Total interest-bearing liabilities
Customer accounts
Accrued interest on deposits
from banks
Accrued interest on customer
accounts
Accrued interest on loans
from international financial
organizations
Accrued interest on debt
securities issued
Other liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
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2003
Total

Less than
1 month

1– 3
months

3–6
months

6 –12
months

More than 1
year

Allowance
for losses

6,698

1,138

–

–

–

(37)

7,799

5,257

8,158

10,671

16,812

17,972

(1,941)

56,929

11,955

9,296

10,671

16,812

17,972

(1,978)

64,728

2,500

–

–

–

–

–

2,500

190

–

–

–

–

–

190

8

–

–

–

–

–

8

498
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
668

(4)
–

494
668

–

–

–

–

3,250

–

3,250

8
15,159

–
9,296

25
10,696

–
16,812

210
22,100

(21)
(2,003)

222
72,060

5,088

3,038

2,500

488

–

–

11,114

–
1,021
–
6,109
3,785

–
1,202
–
4,240
–

839
1,389
1,147
5,875
–

1,978
2,276
1,107
5,849
–

28,749
1,739
–
30,488
–

–
–
–
–
–

31,566
7,627
2,254
52,561
3,785

4

–

24

–

–

–

28

146

–

–

–

–

–

146

219

101

6

–

–

–

326

46

–

–

–

–

–

46

7
10,316

5
4,346

23
5,928

8
5,857

–
30,488

–
–

43
56,935
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Liquidity gap
Interest sensitivity gap
Cumulative interest
sensitivity gap
Cumulative interest sensitivity gap
as a percentage of total assets

Less than
1 month
4,843
5,846

1– 3
months
4,950
5,056

3–6
months
4,768
4,796

6 –12
months
10,955
10,963

More than 1
year
(8,388)
(12,516)

5,846

10,902

15,698

26,661

14,145

8.1%

15.1%

21.8%

36.9%

19.6%

Allowance
for losses

Total

2002
ASSETS
Loans and advances to banks,
less allowance for loan losses
Loans and advances to customers,
less allowance for loan losses
Total interest-earning assets
Cash and balances with the NBU
Income tax asset
Fixed and intangible assets, less
accumulated depreciation
and amortisation
Accrued interests on loans
and advances to customers
Other assets, less allowance
for other losses
TOTAL ASSETS

3,033

–

–

–

–

(20)

3,013

3,403
6,436
398
–

5,207
5,207
–
–

6,155
6,155
–
–

7,198
7,198
–
–

3,693
3,693
–
221

(859)
(879)
–
–

24,797
27,810
398
221

–

–

–

–

2,550

–

2,550

236

–

–

–

–

(2)

234

–
7,070

–
5,207

–
6,155

–
7,198

132
6,596

(8)
(889)

124
31,337

–
275

–
974

–
362

–
411

–
–

1,926
2,278

–
275
–

–
974
–

–
362
–

15,647
16,058
–

–
–
–

15,647
19,851
1,619

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

7
34

124
80
–

–
–
13

–
–
12

–
–
–

–
–
–

124
80
25

–

21,740

LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks
1,926
Customer accounts
256
Loans from international
financial organizations
–
Total interest-bearing liabilities
2,182
Customer accounts
1,619
Accrued interests on deposits
from banks
7
Accrued interests on customer accounts 34
Accrued interest on loans
from international financial
organizations
–
Income tax liabilities
–
Other liabilities
–
TOTAL LIABILITIES

3,842

479

987

374

16,058

Liquidity gap
Interest sensitivity gap
Cumulative interest
sensitivity gap
Cumulative interest
sensitivity gap as a
percentage of total assets

3,228
4,254

4,728
4,932

5,168
5,181

6,824
6,836

(9,462)
(12,365)

4,254

9,186

14,367

21,203

8,838

13.6%

29.3%

45.8%

67.7%

28.2%
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Asset and liability maturity periods and the ability to replace
interest liabilities at an acceptable cost when they mature are
crucial in determining the Bank’s liquidity and its susceptibility
to fluctuation of interest rates and exchange rates.
Substantially all of the Bank’s interest-bearing assets are at
fixed rates of interest and liabilities are at floating rates of interest.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in
interest rates will affect the value of the financial instruments.
The Bank’s interest rate policy is reviewed and approved by the
Bank’s Assets and Liabilities Committee. The Bank manages its
interest rate exposures in line with the key indicators and
assumptions made by the Assets and Liabilities Committee.
The Bank’s accounting software is used as a reporting tool to
ensure that the potential risk is identified. The Treasury Department produces a weekly interest gap report, that is compared to
limits set. Excess is communicated to the Bank’s Board.
The following table presents an analysis of interest rate risk and
thus the potential of the Bank for gain or loss. Effective interest
rates are presented by categories of financial assets and liabilities to determine interest rate exposure and effectiveness of the
interest rate policy used by the Bank.

ASSETS
Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to
customers
LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks
Customer accounts
Loans from international
financial organizations
Debt securities issued

2003
EUR Other currencies

UAH

USD

2002
EUR

-

-

3.00%

3.20%

16.04%

18%

28.21%

15.80%

14.41%

2.15%
7.49%

6.03%
6.80%

-

12.13%
17.74%

5.82%

5.39%

4.93%
-

3.63%
-

-

-

5.75%
-

4.49%
-

UAH

USD

-

6.07%

7.01%

22.61%

14.58%

14.29%
14.36%
14%

Currency risk
Currency risk is defined as the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Bank is exposed to effects of fluctuation in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position
and cash flows.
The Management Board sets limits on the level of exposure by
currencies (primarily USD and EUR). The Bank’s exposure to
foreign currency exchange rate risk is presented in the table
below:
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UAH

EUR

Instruments
linked to
EUR

USD

Instruments Non-conlinked to
vertible
USD currencies

Allowance
for losses

Total

2003
ASSETS
Cash and balances
with the NBU
Loans and advances to banks,
less allowance for loan losses
Loans and advances to customers,
less allowance for loan losses
Income tax assets
Fixed and intangible assets, less
accumulated depreciation
and amortisation
Other assets, less
allowance for other losses
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks
Loans from international financial
organizations
Customer accounts
Debt securities issued
Other liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET POSITION

1,907

70

–

523

–

–

–

2,500

44

3,852

–

4,127

–

11

(37)

7,997

7,492
668

3,260
–

338 39,724
–
–

8,552
–

2
–

(1,945)
–

57,423
668

3,250

–

–

–

–

–

3,250

243
13,604

–
7,182

–
–
338 44,374

–
8,552

–
13

(21)
(2,003)

222
72,060

3,064

587

7,491

–

–

–

11,142

–
6,936
2,300
42
12,342
1,262

5,417
904
–
–
6,908
274

– 26,475
– 3,718
–
–
–
1
– 37,685
338 6,689

–
–
–
–
–
8,552

–
–
–
–
–
13

–
–
–
–
–

31,892
11,558
2,300
43
56,935

–

–
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Instruments Non-conlinked to
vertible
USD currencies

Allowance
for losses

Total

2002
ASSETS
Cash and balances
with the NBU
Loans and advances to banks,
less allowance for loan losses
Loans and advances to customers,
less allowance for loan losses
Income tax assets
Fixed and intangible assets, less
accumulated depreciation
and amortisation
Other assets, less allowance for
other losses
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks
Loans from international financial
organizations
Customer accounts
Income tax liabilities
Other liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET POSITION

276

49

–

73

–

–

–

398

17

1,042

–

1,958

–

16

(20)

3,013

3,763
221

4,001
–

3,835
–

11,081
–

3,212
–

–
–

(861)
–

25,031
221

2,550

–

–

–

–

–

–

2,550

–

91

–

–

(8)

124

3,835 13,203

3,212

16

(889)

31,337

12

29

6,839

5,121

1,933

–

–

–

–

–

–

1,933

–
2,451
80
6
4,470
2,369

4,621
361
–
17
4,999
122

–
–
–
–
–
3,835

11,150
1,119
–
2
12,271
932

–
–
–
–
–
3,212

–
–
–
–
–
16

–
–
–
–
–

15,771
3,931
80
25
21,740

Credit risk
The Bank is exposed to credit risk which is the risk that one party will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party
to incur a financial loss.
The Bank structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by
placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one
borrower, or group of borrowers, and to region. Limits on the
level of credit risk by borrower and by region are set by the risk
manager and approved every half year by the Board. Actual
exposures against limits are monitored daily.
For the majority of loans the Bank obtains collateral, corporate
and personal guarantees, but a significant portion of loans is
granted to sole traders and individuals, where inherent risk of
safety collateral is high. Such risks are monitored on a continuous basis and subject to quarterly or more frequent reviews.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of
credit in the form of loans, guarantees or letters of credit. The
credit risk on off-balance sheet financial instruments is defined
as a probability of losses due to inability of the counterparty to
comply with the contractual terms and conditions.
The Bank applies the same credit policy to the contingent liabilities as it does to the balance sheet financial instruments, i.e. the
one based on the procedures for approving the granting of
loans, using limits to mitigate the risk, and current monitoring.
The Bank monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments
because longer-term commitments generally have a greater
degree of credit risk than shorter-term commitments.
Geographical concentration
The geographical concentration of assets and liabilities is set
out below:

57

Financial Statements

Cash and balances with the NBU
Loans and advances to banks,
less allowance for loan losses
Loans and advances to customers, less
allowance for loan losses
Fixed and other intangible assets,
less accumulated depreciation
and amortization
Income tax assets
Other assets, less allowance for other losses
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks
Customer accounts
Loans from international financial
organizations
Debt securities issued
Other liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET POSITION

Ukraine

Other CIS
countries

OECD
countries

2,500

–

7,067

Allowance
for losses

–

–

2,500

11

956

–

(37)

7,997

59,368

–

–

–

(1,945)

57,423

3,250
668

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

3,250
668

243
73,096

–
11

–
956

–
–

(21)
(2,003)

222
72,060

8,030
11,558

–
–

–
–

3,112
–

–
–

11,142
11,558

–
2,300
43
21,931
51,165

–
–
–
–
11

31,892
–
–
31,892
(30,936)

–
–
–
3,112
(3,112)

–
–
–
–

31,892
2,300
43
56,935

OECD Other noncountries
OECD
countries

Allowance
for losses

Ukraine

Cash and balances with the NBU
398
Loans and advances to banks, less allowance for loan
losses
1,432
Loans and advances to customers, less allowance for
loan losses
25,892
Fixed and other intangible assets, less accumulated
depreciation and amortisation
2,550
Income tax assets
221
Other assets, less allowance for other losses
132
TOTAL ASSETS
30,625
LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks
Customer accounts
Loans from international financial organizations
Income tax liabilities
Other liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET POSITION

2003
Total

Other nonOECD
countries
–

2002
Total

–

–

–

398

1,601

–

(20)

3,013

–

–

(861)

25,031

–
–
–
1,601

–
–
–
–

–
–
(8)
(889)

2,550
221
124
31,337

1,933
3,931
–
80

–
–
15,771
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

1,933
3,931
15,771
80

25
5,969
24,656

–
15,771
(14,170)

–
–

–
–

25
21,740
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